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Our Mission,
Vision,
and Management
Concept

Providing a safe, reliable, cordial, and high-quality
transport service is more than just our mission, it is our
duty and the reason for our existence.

We aim to develop TRTC into a first-class corporation that
serves as an international leader in the field of mass transit.

We pledge that our customers come first and we believe in quality
above all. TRTC strives to meet our passengers' every need by providing
outstanding, innovative services.
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A Word from the Chairman

After many years of operation, the Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation (TRTC) marked a number of major milestones in 2010. In
addition to overcoming problems that arose from integrating two different operating systems on Taipei Metro's Wenhu Line, the
metro also increased the length of its network. It broke through the 100-kilometer mark, making transportation in the Greater
Taipei metropolitan area more convenient and raising people's quality of life.

On April 22, 2010, Taipei Metro's accumulated ridership surpassed 4 billion. After the Luzhou Line became operational on Nov.
3, 2010, the total ridership over a one-year period exceeded 500 million for the first time. This means that the Taipei Metro will
be able to become a member of the COMET program of international railway benchmarking, enabling it to conduct technical
exchanges with officials from large metro systems in some of the world's best-known cities, like New York, Paris, and London In
its role of operating the Taipei Metro, TRTC's main responsibilities include providing passengers with a transport environment
and service that are safe and of high quality, while continuing to enhance facilities and equipment and ensure the system's
safety and stability. In 2010, through the hard work of all company employees, the metro became more stable. The system's
reliability rate, based on the average number of car-kilometers traveled between incidents causing delays of five minutes or more
(mean kilometer between failure, or MKBF) , exceeded 2 million car-kilometers for the first time. It marked the metro's best-ever
performance.

On Oct. 1, 2008, service was suspended on the Maokong Gondola because of damage the system sustained during a typhoon.
After moving tower T16, the city government looked at system operational test results to verify that there were no safety
problems, the gondola officially started running again on March 30, 2010. To provide higher-quality, safer service, TRTC worked
to improve the surrounding environment and system safety while offering more information and a better travel experience. The
changes meant an improved gondola system when service resumed. In addition, passengers could fully enjoy Taipei's best
mountain scenery, 30 transparent cars were added to the line. The all-new “Eyes of Maokong Gondola” transparent cars allow
for a more amazing ride and make the gondola even more special. Reopening the service meant a new influx of tourists to the
Maokong area and gave the gondola a chance to exceed 8 million total trips, which it did on Dec. 31.

TRTC has always operated in the manner of a private corporation and worked hard to expand the scope of its operations. Apart
from the transit industry, it has invested in the EasyCard Investment Holding Corporation and the Metro Consulting Service
Corporation. When it comes to realizing and managing its investments, TRTC is continually trying to strengthen its market
presence. Starting from April 1, 2010, the EasyCard Corporation expanded to servicing the small-value purchases market. In
addition to mass transit systems, EasyCards can be used at convenience stores, supermarkets and other sales outlets. They
not only continue to make it convenient for people to pay transportation fees, they have expanded to servicing the everyday
consumer market. The added services mean an even closer relationship with EasyCard holders. The Metro Consulting Service
Corporation has also built on its achievements in the consulting industry while expanding its service scope, establishing the
foundations of future growth.

Learning is one of the driving forces behind industrial growth. In this age of globalization, where information can be transmitted
almost instantaneously, TRTC is also striving to become a transit provider that has a more international outlook and can adapt
to emerging technological advances. In 2010, it actively participated in international conferences as a way of exchanging
information on experiences with foreign transit providers and learning about their benchmarking methods. Conferences it joined
included those held by the Nova international rail consortiums and the International Association of Public Transport (UITP)
and the American Public Transportation Association (APTA) public transit groups. TRTC was also invited to participate in an
exhibition at the Shanghai World Expo. In the exhibition, it joined international transit providers in highlighting the importance and
valuable contributions of mass transit to sustainable urban development. In 2011, TRTC will again host Nova's annual meeting.
More than ten subway providers from around the world will be invited to the meeting, where TRTC will be able to absorb valuable
information related to running a metro system. It will also be able to achieve its goals of promoting Taipei and the Taipei Metro.

Starting with the launch of the Muzha Line in 1996, TRTC has played an important role in leading urban development. The length
of track it operates has already exceeded 100-kilometers, and more lines will continue to open, one-after-another, between 2011
and 2014. TRTC's role in the Greater Taipei metropolitan area is likewise important. As more and more metro lines open, it is
promoting rapid change. There is an increased vitality in urban areas, land usage efficiency is on the rise and a wider diversity
of lifestyle choices has been made available to city residents, resulting in a new, more international urban style for the Greater
Taipei metropolitan area. As these changes take place, TRTC will continue to innovate and forge ahead while raising service
quality. Through these efforts, Taipei Metro will become not only one of the world's top transit systems, but also a service that
makes all Taipei residents proud.
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A Word from the President

When the Luzhou Line opened in November 2010, it reduced the travel time between central areas of Taipei and surrounding
satellite cities such as Sanchong and Luzhou, making life for people in the Greater Taipei area more convenient and bringing
everyone closer together. The new line also brought the total length of track operating on the metro to 100.8 kilometers and the
total number of stations to 93 (including four main transit stations) , with average daily ridership surpassing 1.5 million. As the
network gradually expands and passenger volume continues to increase, TRTC keeps striving toward its goal of providing safe,
reliable, comfortable and convenient metro service.

TRTC has always placed safety and reliability foremost. From the moment when passengers enter the metro station to when
they leave the station at their destination, TRTC strives to provide a pleasant journey. It does not want to let system or equipment
problems or other issues impair this experience. Therefore, TRTC carries out daily maintenance, conducts drills, and works to
improve the facilities and equipment in a prudent, conscientious and meticulous manner. Improvements made in 2010 include
installing platform screen doors at Yuanshan, Sun Yat-Sen Memorial Hall and Taipei City Hall stations and remodeling the gap
between the platform and train at 1,250 locations on the high-capacity system. Looking toward the future, TRTC plans to install
platform screen doors at 15 more stations by 2015, in order to ensure safety as passenger capacity increases in line with network
expansion. In addition, over the past year, TRTC completed projects to improve stability and service quality on the medium-
capacity Wenhu Line. These projects raised stability on the line to 1.324 million car-kilometers, a level of stability that the Muzha
Line did not reach until 2003, after it had been running for eight years.

The main reasons that passengers choose Taipei Metro are its comfort and convenience. To this end, TRTC continues to
assess transit needs and remain flexible in adding additional trains as it works toward providing closely spaced runs. Starting
from December 2010, the VAL256 trains that had been part of the original Muzha Line entered into service on the medium-
capacity Wenhu Line following the completion of refurbishing and testing. Headway at peak hours was cut to two minutes and 29
seconds, reducing pressure on trains and crowding on platforms during rush hours. Moreover, to better connect with recreational
bicycle paths in the metropolitan area and bring the metro closer to the leisure needs of people, in April 2010, TRTC started
allowing passengers to bring bicycles on the trains at designated stations throughout the day on weekends and holidays. Then, in
December of the same year, it added seven more stations that allowed bicycle access, bringing the total number of bicycle-friendly
stations on the network to 33 and making it easier for people to enjoy trips in more places around the Taipei City area.

Another area that TRTC is focusing on as part of its efforts to improve perception of the metro is creating a thoughtful, friendly
transit environment. To achieve this, in 2010, it carried out many improvement projects, including making trains more comfortable
for people to use, remodeling and improving station restrooms, and replacing old station lighting fixtures and electronic media
displays. The purpose of these changes was to provide passengers with thoughtful service during their journey. Another point to
keep in mind is that the metro is a modern, technology-centered service. For this reason, it can give a stiff impression congruent
with being a part of the urban environment. To avoid this, TRTC does everything it can to improve the appearance of stations and
their surrounding area. When possible, TRTC combines these beautifying efforts with the season or with events happening at
the time. Its goal is to create a space that is visually rich, so that passengers stuck in the busy expanse of the city can enjoy vivid,
colorful images. For example, TRTC undertook projects in 2010 in conjunction with the International Taipei Flora Expo, including
designing a series of colorful trains themed after the expo and decorating the station hall and outside pillars at Yuanshan Station,
which is near the Flora Expo site so that passengers can feel the event while taking the train.

On March 30, 2010, the Maokong Gondola resumed operations, and in December of the same year it received 1ISO 9001
certification. By standardizing procedures and fully implementing system operations and maintenance tasks, the average
availiability rate of Maokng Gondola is above 99.9 percent. As it was focusing on system safety and smooth operations, TRTC
also worked hard to make sure the gondola would be able to meet people's expectations when it resumed operations. Efforts to
transform the system included introducing new painted cars and 30 “Eyes of Maokong Gondola” transparent cars, carrying out
comprehensive landscaping improvements around Taipei Zoo Station, setting up a tourist service center, and adding fountains.
The results of a survey conducted after operations resumed showed that 95.8 percent of respondents would recommend the
gondola to family and friends and 94.3 percent would like to ride the gondola again. Also, to maintain support and meet people's
expectations, for the first time the gondola extended service on New Year's Eve to 1am. During this extended opening period at
9pm, accumulated ridership on the Maokong Gondola exceeded 8 million, demonstrating the trust and fondness people retained
for the system after it resumed operations. The Taipe Aiena achieved a couple of records in 2010, including most users ever, with
more than 1.04 million, and highest usage rate, at 85.8 percent. We will continue to improve facilities and equipment and expand
the variety of activities held there, and make the arena become a world-class performance facility and a lifestyle space that the
city's residents love.

TRTC has always been committed to achieving the best. Its service attitude of respecting customers continues to receive both
recognition and encouragement, as shown in customer satisfaction rating 94.7 percent in 2010. As we look toward the future, |
along with all of my colleagues will continue to meet challenges and strive for breakthroughs. TRTC will do everything it can to
spread an outstanding metro culture so Greater Taipei residents can enjoy efficient, comprehensive service and the high quality of
life that the metro brings.

05 1)




_ o _STRUCTURE
AND

ORGANIZAT|ON




B ARREHG 518 Capitalization and Ownership Structure
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BEAX#518E Capitalization Structure
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Taipei City Government 0.36 %

B 5EER
Ministry of Transportation and Communications

B FLHE (y
New Taipei City Government 8-75 (0)

B EXE TWRDBERAT
Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd
R LR IRT

Mega Bank Corporation

BFEERIT

Taiwan Cooperative Bank
S EHEZRIT

Taipei Fubon Bank

1714 %

LMY Taipei City Government 6,898,247,860 73.75%
A23BER Ministry of Transportation and Communications 1,603,560,000 17.14%
# LIS New Taipei City Government 818,483,750 8.75%
EE55#8 T RRA% {0 BFR/A & Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd 33,407,500

JE LB R E 2 ER1T Mega Bank Corporation 133,630 .
S{FEEIRTT Taiwan Cooperative Bank 133,630 0.96%
SIEMEZERITARIDBPRAT) Taipei Fubon Bank 133,630

9,354,100,000 100%

73.75%
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TRTC's registered capital is NT$10 billion, spread among 1 billion shares, with each share valued
at NT$10. In the early phase following TRTC's establishment, paid-in capital totaled NT$7 billion.
Following transfers from profits to capital in September 2001 and November 2002, capital increased
by NT$2.016 billion and NT$338.1 million, respectively. Through the end of 2010, paid-in capital
totaled NT$9,354,100,000.
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Chairman
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Standing Directors
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Directors
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Standing Auditor
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Auditors

ZHES Huel-Sheng Tsay

Z=00) || (FLHRARIES)
Shu-Chuan Lee (Deputy Mayor of New Taipei City Government)

PREVIE (PIRIARERGEMBEIRE)
Wu-Cheng Chen (Dean of School of Transportation and Tourism, Kainan University)

BAYE (RBARREEMATAREIZE)
Tai-Sheng Huang (Associate Professor of Institute of Traffic and Transportation, National Chiao Tung University)

IBEE (TEBEEITR)
Hsi-Tung Yang (Director of Department of General Affairs, Ministry of Transportation and Communications)

FEER (ERERFRE IR EEENTR)
Hsiao-Tung Yang (Executive Vice President, Head Management Department, Want Want China Times Media Group)

RBRD (REPARREER)
Men-Feng Wau (Director of Directorate General of Highways, Ministry of Transportation and Communications)

PRINE (EImEEAEREIRE)
Jeng-Long Chen (Deputy Commissioner, Department of Transportation, Taipei City Government)

RIS (BhEAEEIRERR)
Richard C. L. Chen (Commissioner of Department of Rapid Transit Systems, Taipei City Government)

BRIT (ST SREEEE8)
Ching-Yuan Yeh (Chairman of Law and Regulation Commission, Taipei City Government)

BTH (ExMIm (R AaARGESE)
Shih-Yi Chiang (Acting Chairman of Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.)

HFEE (EHBEREEEER)
Hsiu-Neng Hsieh (Commissioner of Taipei City Police Department)

BEL (EAREERDERATIZES)
Chih-An Chien (Council Member, Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation Union)

EEDY (SItARBERDERATREE)
Gwa-Guang Tan (President of Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation)

R B (EHBEEREER)
Hsiu-Chu Liang (Deputy Commissioner of Department of Budget, Accounting and Statistics, Taipei City Government)

ARG REBGEEHFIEE)
Chia-Chih Wu (Expert Committee, Department of Statistics, Ministry of Transportation and Communications)

ZOKE (B HRRBERIRR)
Yung-Chen Li (Deputy Commissioner, Department of Finance, Taipei City Government)

PR (EHERASEER)
Yieng-Chen Han (Commissioner of Personnel Department, Taipei City Government)
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Note: Board members as of Dec. 31, 2010. Arranged based on the number of strokes in the member's Chinese surname.
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TRTC is dedicated to improving urban transportation and city functioning while promoting urban development.
Apart from striving for high operational marks in the metro transit industry, TRTC has also accepted
commissions from the Taipei City Government to run the Maokong Gondola and the Taipei Arena. It is
gradually extending the range of its business as it works toward achieving its vision of becoming a world-class

corporation.
1. BRETH 4. ETHEREEMET Education Statistics
Total Number of Employees : 4,591 A {EDoctorate : 3A
2. ETERIMET IEtMaster: 582 A
Gender : 58 Male 3,770 A » & Female 821 A KEZBachelor: 2,278 A
3. BT F&fET E#RlCollege: 1,281 A
Average Age : Y13 35.60 5% = Senior High School/Vocational School : 435A

X Junior High School : 12 A
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Total of 19 units, including 15 divisions and 4 offices
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Significant Events

317 B8 RIMCTEER TRTC Issues Its “Love Taipei” Souvenir Series

2010 F£2 B9 HMU NE=&=dt | RERE » BEN LOVE 2HTERAEREN » BISEEHES » #H
F2ILEERmR - BRI 1718 31 Kic TS M

With “Love Taipei” as its theme, on Feb. 9, 2010, TRTC combined the “Love Taipei” concept with a red heart
for the first time. The result was an entirely new style. 17 souvenirs and 31 models made up the “Love Taipei”
series.

JHZCHEERI%{EE Maokong Gondola Resumes Service

2008 FIHZHEEREZ MR B R MESEE - 1R 2010 &£ 3 H 30 HIEINIERIE » [REFEFABE
FESN > #eH 1 BREJ 360 BAREIHZEESAY [IKRERE ) - win RRETHTZIEREERE - WEHNHEFHZME
L ERENE o

Service was suspended on the Maokong Gondola in 2008 because of typhoon damage. It resumed operations
on March 30, 2010. Apart from having its cars decorated with an all-new animal theme, one entirely transparent
“crystal car” that provides a 360-degree panoramic view of Maokong was added to the line. The changes
provided passengers with a brand new riding experience and helped to reinvigorate tourism to the Maokong
area.

ELEERMRASHERZEW 40 {EAX Taipei Metro Accumulated Ridership
Exceeds 4 Billion

2010 £ 4 B 22 H2IALZEREHES R 40 (AR » RRFUEEBIRE - H4 5 22HES5 H 31 BB
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On April 22, 2010, Taipei Metro's accumulated ridership exceeded 4 billion. To thank passengers and give
something back, TRTC held a special activity called “Four Gift-giving Celebrations at the Taipei Metro Souvenir
Shop to Mark 4 Billion Passengers.” The event was held over a period of 40 days from April 22 to May 31 on
the metro's website and at its souvenir shops. TRTC also put up multimedia thank you messages for hitting 4
billion passengers, including on the metro system's news-ticker style displays, platform TVs, and light boxes,
as well as in Upaper.”

BREISERAMIERETEER Bikes Permitted On Weekends

E 2010 & 4 B 24 BFEEMNAMERE TTFRIERE (T 4 BERE 7 15) » IREREEX (B73 8
BEREERBRE L 6 EEERR) I9UBFEITEERSESRERMR
Starting from April 24, 2010, TRTC began letting passengers carry bicycles onto the metro during peak

weekend and holiday hours (from 4pm to 7pm) The change meant that passengers could bring bicycles onto
the high-capacity metro system on all holidays and weekends all-day long (from 6am to closing time) .

RIE 2010 FEILMHETH I ZEREBREUFIIAKRSR
Taipei's 2010 Company Excellence Award for Promoting Worker Safety and
Health

BRETREZE/ET(F » TRERS BB LFEEEBXRIBEFRKERCE » 5IE 2010 F2LT
METE TL=EERREN ) [TLZRIZE) R 1BILZ=REERAS] FI3EKXK -

TRTC works to provide a safe, healthy working environment. Over the entire year, there were no major injuries
among construction and labor firms working for the metro, a record low. The performance enabled TRTC to
win three 2010 Taipei City awards, including the Company Excellence Award for Promoting Worker Safety
and Health, the Worker Safety Innovation Award, and the Personnel Excellence Award for Worker Safety and
Health.

BRINEE c BIEEREEAE 6th Metro Street Dance Competition

2010 &£ 8 B 21 BE135 6 BERRERABATRE » MBETIRS] 202 XB=LSI (DEHE 129 X ~ FFEHE
73 %) - 1BiBK) ~ B8E - VEEREFEE - DRIELR 3 BR 1 BKREREM 2 B - AERBUETES
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SEERE -

On Aug. 21, 2010, the TRTC held its 6th Metro Street Dance Competition. A total of 202 teams registered to
participate (including 129 in the children's division and 73 in the youth division) . Preliminary and semifinal
rounds were held to choose the top three contestants and two honorable mentions for each age group.
Breaking from previous competition formats, this was the first time the event was held in cooperation with
Singapore and Malaysia, with top teams from those countries invited to Taipei to compete in the finals. It ended
up being Taiwan's biggest street dancing event.
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TRTC Wins in the Transportation Category of the Excellent Public Restroom
Awards

RBE GRS N LRI S K R E IR S5 LRI 2 RIS E =0 2010 FEBE QRN R B iEFE
RABEHE -
TRTC was honored in Taipei City's 2010 Excellent Public Restroom Awards. In the transportation category,

the women's restroom at the Wenhu Line's Songshan Station won an excellence award and the men's and
women's restrooms at the Danshui Line's Shipai Station won first-rate awards.

BBIREIEBREE

Metro Stations Obtain Taipei's Breastfeeding Room Excellence Certification
BEZICED - BERED - IYENREIN)NEESF 4 RIFEIE - 122010 F£ 9 B 23 H@EB&EILMH
B BRRE -

The breastfeeding rooms at Taipei Main, Zhongxiao Fuxing and Taipei Zoo stations and at Taipei Arena
obtained the Taipei City Government's excellence certification on Sept. 23, 2010.

BRAELWIG - BRicEIaRMBATIGAEM
Platform Doors at Yuanshan, Sun Yat-Sen and Taipei City Hall Stations
Commence Operation

ELLis ~ BRCREEIMR METIEE 3 IMAEFIENTIER » RDRIEIREZIRELE -

The metro officially started to use platform doors at Yuanshan, Sun Yat-Sen Memorial Hall and Taipei City Hall
stations. The barriers increase safety for passengers waiting for the train.

REREIXES 23 EEEEEEEHHRE [ SI518) R [HEE )
TRTC wins a golden and bronze tower prize at 23rd Nationwide Quality
Control Circle Rally and Competition

210 2010 FHOEELXE% 23 BE=HEHEBEEHRE - DL MK 301 B ERiE 2R EREMIEN
1 R NMEAZEHESHRIBEESTRE | RESERRIWER -

TRTC won a golden and bronze tower prize with the topic “finding ways to lower occurrences of temporary
air conditioning breakdowns on 301-type trains” and “increasing the thoroughness of incident management
instructions given by control room personnel” at the 23rd Nationwide Quality Control Circle Rally and
Competition, 2010.

ENER (NG - BEFEDL) BEEE

The Luzhou Line (Luzhou Station to Zhongxiao Xinsheng Station) Opens
BEER (BN - BEFED) R2010F 11 B3 H®BE > R 125 22 11 @E&El - TRBUT
B SIEERRREEREIZID 100.8 RE » REMENRBBERZEBRRERAREERT B
WERZE 12 B 2 HIDETRE 1 BAZZEHF -

The Luzhou Line (Luzhou Station to Zhongxiao Xinsheng Station) opened on Nov. 3, 2010. The line is 12.5
kilometers long, has 11 stations and is entirely underground. With the addition of the new line, the total length

of the network increased to 100.8 kilometers. To celebrate the opening and encourage people to use this new
transport link, riding the line was free for one month, from the opening until Dec. 2.

AR | /KRR CREE

“€yes of Maokong Gondola” Transparent Cars Enter Service

2010 & 11 B 2 BHEHE 20 2 MSEEZR ) /KRB - BE5H - WK 11 B 6 BESEBIN 102 > &5F
H 30 =EEfE CIREE > BIRRANEZHEET IR °

Twenty additional “Eyes of Maokong Gondola” transparent cars went into service on Nov. 2, 2010. The cars

were well received, and another 10 were added on Nov. 6, bringing the total to 30. The transparent cars give
passengers on the gondola an entirely new experience.
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Significant Events

BRgipEInE_HAO
Second Entryways Open at Three Stations

RERRTK » BKRaE  ZLEREERIEE _HAODRIR 11 B 20 HR 25 HEA -

To better meet customer needs, TRTC added a second exit and entryway to a number of metro stations. Work
was completed and new entrances opened at the Danshui Line's Shipai, Zhishan and Qilian stations on Nov.
20 and 25.

VAL2S56 EREEINA SRS E
VAL256 Trains Added to the Wenhu Line

2010 & 12 B 26 HHEERAMMIR 51 ¥ VAL256 ERIES I ASGRIREE » fEREKRIESIEYIEE - IR
[ESE=10

Fifty-one pairs of VAL256 trains that had been part of the Muzha Line went into service on the Wenhu Line on
Dec. 26, 2010. The new trains cut peak-time headway, thereby enhancing service.

IENNFEM 7 EEIG R A SR TEIERIEE

Seven More Stations Allow Bicycles on Weekends

EESEIIFRBEEE » 5 2010 &F 12 B 4 BIZMEIIR ~ SKRREEBRE 7 BB REETETEE
JeiEE - DN ERERMMZ 26 RN - IRERMBETSEENZ SESRESEINIE 33 8 (E5R1A 110
&) -

Following the opening of the Luzhou Line on Dec. 4, 2010, seven stations from the Luzhou, Danshui and
Nangang lines started allowing passengers to bring their bikes on the metro during weekends and holidays.
When added to the 26 stations that already allowed bikes, the total number of stations on high-capacity lines
permitting bicycles on weekends and holidays increased to 33 (including one transfer station) .

FEERE 5 AR

Ridership for the Year Exceeds 500 Million

2010 £ 12 B 29 HEIMEBEFES IEINZEM 5 (BAX » BN BELEREEEC RSfcik @ KEPRHIEE
RFIELITE S 5 (BATRD T » 2ILEZEZNZ Nova/CoMET #EERIEFHERHZ CoMET &
8 REGELRAY ~ MmN~ B3R « BRI S BRI mthERE T3OM -

On Dec. 29, 2010, ridership for the year officially exceeded 500 million for the first time ever. With international
rail consortiums using an annual ridership of 500 million as a separation standard, the milestone signified that

Taipei Metro could look forward to joining the CoMET rail consortium. When that occurs, Taipei Metro will be
able to exchange information with the metro systems in cities such as New York, London, Paris and Moscow.

S ZEHE B Ik EE ZE T 800 BAR

Accumulated Ridership on the Maokong Gondola Exceeds 8 Million

2010 £ 12 B 31 HEHEERSIRES SR 800 EAX » B SEF - BELEREEREZE 2011 &
1HB1RZER1K-

Accumulated ridership on the Maokong Gondola exceeded 8 million on Dec. 31, 2010. Also, in accord with the
Taipei City Government's New Year's Eve activities, TRTC extended gondola service hours until 17am on Jan. 1,
2011. It was the first time the gondola offered extended service hours on New Year's Eve.

ERESEXRKREIHS

A Record Set for Single-day Ridership

SIEER 2011 BFEREEENEM 24 /)\WEENHENZRE - B 2010 & 12 B 31 H.EF 6 K= 2011
F1 81 HLET 6K » HEHHEIRS 250 BERAX » RITEREERLHS -

To accommodate New Year's Eve activities, the metro remained open for 24 hours. From 6am on Dec. 31,
2010, until 6am the following day, more than 2.5 million people took the service, setting a single-day record.
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There were nine metro lines operational in 2010, including the Wenhu, Danshui, Xindian, Zhonghe, Nangang,
Xiaonanmen, Bangiao, Tucheng and Luzhou lines. The network spanned 100.8 kilometers (the total track
constructed measured 105.4 kilometers) and there were 93 stations (including the four main transfer stations,
Taipei Main, Zhongxiao Fuxing, Zhongxiao Xinsheng and Minquan West Road) .

Operations began on the Luzhou Line (from Luzhou Station to Zhongxiao Xinsheng Station) on Nov. 3, 2010.
The 12.5-kilometer line had 11 stations and extended the metro network to the Sanchong and Luzhou areas.
In addition, it provided traveling time of 12 minutes from Luzhou Station to Minquan West Road Station and 19
minutes from Luzhou Station to Zhongxiao Xinsheng Station. The line drastically cut down on travel time for
Luzhou and Sanchong residents to reach central areas of Taipei.
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Core Transport Business

Ridership continued to rise in 2010, with total ridership for the year reaching 505,466,450 for an average daily
ridership of 1,384,840. Compared to 2009's average of 1,267,048, average daily ridership increased by 117,792, or
9.30 percent.

Ridership on the metro's high-capacity systems was 446,310,000, with a daily average of 1,222,000, an increase of
73,000 or 6.33 percent compared to 2009's daily average of 1,149,000.

On the medium-capacity system (the Wenhu Line) ,
total ridership in 2010 was 59,150,000, with an average
daily ridership of 162,000, an increase of 45,000, or 9.43
percent, compared to 2009's daily average of 117,000.
The main reason for the increase was the increase in
system reliability.

After the Luzhou Line began running on Nov. 3, 2010,
average daily ridership on the entire network was
1,608,000, an increase of 267,000, or 19.91 percent,
compared to the daily average of 1,341,000 before the
line started running.

TRTC provided 24-hour service on the metro to
accommodate New Year's activities held in conjunction
with the 2011 Taipei City New Year's Eve Party. Ridership
was 2.5 million between 6am on Dec. 31, 2010, and 6am
on Jan. 1, 2011, an increase of 330,000 from 2010's New
Year's volume and another record.

E19HEE Average Daily Ridership by Year
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BEEEIIRIEVIIE Average Headway During Peak Hours by Year
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BEFIIEIZVIEE Average Headway During Off-peak Hours by Year
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The average peak-hours headways on the medium- and high-capacity systems in 2010 were two minutes 54
seconds and four minutes 35 seconds, respectively. Average off-peak headways were four minutes and 18
seconds and five minutes and 35 seconds. The averages met system goals of two to four minutes for peak
headway and four to seven minutes for off-peak headway on the medium-capacity system, and three to seven
minutes for peak-hours headway and five to 10 minutes for off-peak headway on the high-capacity system.

Fifty-one VAL256 revamped trains
gy F that had been part of the Muzha Line
O . went into operation on the medium-
capacity Wenhu Line on Dec. 26,
2010. The average peak-hours
headway on the medium-capacity
line was reduced to two minutes 29
seconds. This met customer needs by
enhancing transit service during peak
hours on the Wenhu Line.

BEEITEELFE{LIBAZ Average On-time Percentage by Year
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Besides its core transit business, TRTC is involved in a number of affiliated businesses, including advertising,
parking lots, shops and underground shopping malls. The multi-faceted operations help it to increase profits and
provide customers with a wide range of services.

Advertisements available on the metro include light box displays, posters, wall stickers, multimedia ads and
decorated trains. These provide varied and abundant promotional and lifestyle information.

Broadcast content shown on the electronic multimedia display system offered on station platforms includes
details about incoming trains, the date and time. News-ticker displays provide international and English news
reports while the system also shows short promotional and public welfare videos provided by TRTC and the
city government. The service gives passengers waiting for trains abundant information that is constantly being
updated.

TRTC provides park-and-ride lots at stations to meet the parking needs of users of all types of transportation
who want to ride the metro. The metro has 20 fee-based park-and-ride car lots and 38 park-and-ride scooter
lots. Each of the lots provides EasyCard payment service, and 12 accept payments using both EasyCards and
automatic payment machines in order to better serve tourists who come to Taipei and do not have an EasyCard.
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Number of Station Shops and Shops in Underground Shopping Malls

by Year
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Note: The number of shops in underground shopping malls decreased in 2005 because that is when the Taipei City Government Market

Administration Office took over management of the Station Front Metro Mall.
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For shopping, metro customers have a variety of options, including convenience stores, general merchandise
department stores and bookshops. TRTC also reserves some storefronts for charitable organizations. At the end
of 2010, there were 127 stores in Taipei Metro and Maokong Gondola stations, providing convenient service to
passengers.

Apart from its station shops, TRTC also provides customers with the chance to browse underground shopping
malls. Taipei Metro has two of these malls, the East Metro Mall and the Zhongshan Metro Mall. The East Metro
Mall sits in a part of Taipei City's eastern district renowned for its leading businesses and luxurious stores.
To fit in with the area, the shops in the mall are modern and fashionable. The Zhongshan Metro Mall features
Taipei's largest underground book market, a cultural and creative village, and a micro-exhibition area called
MOCA Studio, which is a collaboration between TRTC and the Taipei Museum of Contemporary Art. Together,
these facilities turn the Zhongshan Metro Mall into a cultural shopping zone known for its artistic and literary
characteristics.

To provide passengers with comfortable, convenient walkways, TRTC finished a new building link in 2010 -- the
walkway between the Taipei City Hall Bus Station and Exit 2 of Taipei City Hall Station. Also, a relocation and
connection project that is in the application process is a link between Shin Kong Mitsukoshi's Taipei Nanxi store
and Exit 3 of Zhongshan Station.

For passengers looking for a memento of their journey, Taipei Metro souvenirs are available at the Metro
Souvenir Shops at Taipei Main Station, the Taipei Arena and Zhongxiao Fuxing Station. Plus, in line with the
reopening of the Maokong Gondola in 2010, an all-new store was opened at the Maokong Gondola Service
Center. Items at the center incorporate special Maokong characteristics. Also available are Taipei Metro
specialty souvenir lines, including an all-new line that integrates the “Love Taipei” concept into a souvenir series.

Other affiliated businesses include site rentals for cellular services and station financial services along with sales
outlets for IC card tickets.
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€asyCard Investment Holding Corporation, Ltd.

After the Issuance and Management of Electronic Monetary Cards Act was announced and put into practice
on Jan. 23, 2009, the EasyCard Corporation (in which TRTC held shares) decided to alter its organizational
structure, in line with the management model of Hong Kong's Octopus Holdings Limited. The EasyCard
Investment Holding Corporation, Ltd. (referred to as the Holding Co. below) was established and undertook
a shares swap with the EasyCard Corporation. All of EasyCard Corporation's shares were handed over to the
Holding Co., making the EasyCard Corporation a full subsidiary of the Holding Co. The EasyCard Corporation
then began to concentrate on issuing electronic monetary cards and other specialized services.

The Holding Co.'s primary scope of business is general
investing. Its investments include 100 percent of EasyCard
Corporation shares and 6 percent of Metro Consulting
Service Corporation shares. The aim of the Holding Co. is
to invest in enterprises that help satisfy the comprehensive
ticketing needs of passengers on public transport systems
in the Greater Taipei area. Using public transport as a
foundation, it has expanded its target range to include
regions outside of the Greater Taipei area and made inroads
into serving as a financial tool in the small-value purchases
market.

Electronic monetary card systems are in a period of rapid
growth and are a rising domestic industry. The EasyCard
Corporation, a unit of the Holding Co., started to provide
small-value purchase services on April 1, 2010. In addition
to serving as a public transport fee payment tool, EasyCards
can be used in many domestic consumer channels. They
are closely connected with people's everyday lives and
have become one of the necessary cards that people carry.
For these reasons, the Holding Co. is using resources
connected to electronic monetary cards to invest in an
accumulated purchase incentives company. It will build a
complete consumer purchase information database and
use coupons, emails and text messages along with the
marketing strengths and experience of its joint-venture
partners to effectively manage customer relations and other
promotional services.

The Holding Co.'s after-tax net profits for 2010 amounted
to NT$215.40 million, growth of more than 41 percent
compared to the previous year's NT$152.70 million. Based
on the equity TRTC held in the Holding Co., its investment
gains were approximately NT$60.19 million.
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Metro Consulting Service Corporation

TRTC has accumulated considerable experience and made extensive achievements in the domestic rail
consulting industry. To extend its market for railway operations consulting to the entire Asia-Pacific region and
expand its operations niche, on Nov. 24, 2005, TRTC invested in and helped establish the Metro Consulting
Service Corporation, Ltd. Registered capital was NT$70 million and paid-in capital was NT$50 million. TRTC
held a 20 percent stake in the corporation, making it the largest shareholder.

Since its establishment, Metro Consulting has provided technical consulting service to a number of domestic
and foreign rail operators, including the Kaohsiung Metro, the Taiwan High Speed Rail, the Taoyuan International
Airport Access MRT System and the Chongging, Nanjing and Shenyang metro systems. After providing service,
Metro Consulting has received positive feedback.

Metro Consulting carried out a number of technical service projects in 2010. Cases included establishment
of the Nanjing Metro Corporation's research center and hosting a visit by city government officials in charge
of overseeing mass transit from the capitals of four southeast European countries of Bulgaria, Romania,
Croatia and Serbia. The officials came to Taipei City to research its mass transit system and practices, such
as e-ticketing. Metro Consulting also held a training course for upper-level supervisors from the Xian Metro
Corporation and arranged for maintenance supervisors from Singapore Metro to come to Taiwan and take part
in observation activities over a five-day period. Wuxi city government officials also came on an observation
mission. In addition, the Macau Special Administrative Region government's Transportation Infrastructure Office
commissioned TRTC to offer consulting services related to tests it had carried out to measure noise volume from
the Wenhu Line. Metro Consulting's after-tax net profits for 2010 were NT$2.21 million, a slight increase from
the previous year's amount of NT$2.01 million. Based on the equity TRTC held in the Holding Co., its investment
gains were approximately NT$440,000.

In the future, Metro Consulting will continue to pursue opportunities to provide railway technical support service.
Its goal is to become the most professional mass transit management consulting service team in the Asia-Pacific
region.
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Note: In 2010, accounting practice changes assigned city government subsidies to offset Maokong Gondola settlement losses as “other
operating revenue” (approximately NT$90 million). To avoid a discrepancy, for uses of this table, that amount is deducted from the
affiliated business operating revenue.
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Total revenue was NT$12.59 billion in 2010, with operating income of NT$12.32 billion and non-operating income
of NT$270 million. Operating income included transportation income of NT$10.71 billion and NT$1.61 billion from
affiliated businesses. Total expenditures in 2010 were NT$12.18 billion, including operating costs of NT$9.85
billion, operating expenses of NT$2.31 billion and non-operating expenses of NT$20 million. In 2010, after-tax
profit was NT$406 million.

Fare Revenue

Fare revenue in 2010 was NT$10.71 billion and the average daily fare revenue was NT$29.34 million, an
increase of 8.35 percent compared to 2009's average of NT$27.08 million.

As network accessibility has increased over the years, and along with capacity, fare revenue has been
increasing.

Other Operating Revenue

Operating revenue from affiliated businesses was NT$1.6 billion in 2010. Key sources included advertising,
underground shopping malls, Taipei Arena usage fees, station stores and parking lots.

Non-operating Income

In 2010, non-operating income was NT$270 million, of which NT$140 million was financial income and the
other NT$130 million from non-financial income. The financial income was composed of NT$50 million from
interest (36 percent) , NT$30 million from rental income (21 percent) and NT$60 million from investments (43
percent) . When making financial investments, TRTC gave the greatest consideration to risk. Interest rates have
remained low this year following the global financial crisis. TRTC kept in mind both risk and benefits when it
pursued investments, however, and its overall investment return was still higher than the return on regular fixed
deposits.

FEEHMEZ I Revenue from Other Operating Revenue by Year

BETT
Millions of NT$

g —d-—m=do— oLl oL— bl
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 ZFYear
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Rental Expenditures

The Taipei City government rents the metro network to TRTC for it to operate and manage. Article 15 of the
Statute Governing the Establishment and Management of Public Mass Transit Corporations says:

“The government retains ownership of all mass transit metro systems, and it rents the systems for use
by mass transit corporations. Within the first five years of the transit corporation taking over operations,
any transit networks that are being built in stages and are not yet completed must be rented to the transit
corporation free of charge. The transit corporation is responsible for maintaining the property and facilities
of the transit network and necessary replacement of equipment on the system." For five years starting from
1996, TRTC paid the Taipei City Government a nominal rental fee of NT$1 per line. Starting in the sixth year,
it renegotiated the Taipei Metropolitan Area Mass Rapid Transit System Property Rental Agreement, which
had a validity period from March 28, 2001, to Dec. 31, 2010. Under the terms of the contract, TRTC was
responsible for maintenance and management and replacing worn out and outdated parts, and the rent was
based on equipment replacement costs and 4 percent of operating income. Every two years the two sides
met to renegotiate terms. In 2010, TRTC paid NT$2.666 billion in rental fees. The entire amount went into the
Taipei Metropolitan Area Rapid Transit Fixed Asset Replacement Fund to serve as the main financial source
for costs associated with replacing equipment on the metro to ensure sustainable operations. At the end of
2010, the total amount of rent that had been paid into the fund was NT$23.913 billion.
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Transfer Discounts

To encourage mass transit system usage, TRTC offers discounts for people using their EasyCard to transfer
between the metro and bus systems. Passengers using a regular EasyCard receive an NT$8 discount if they
transfer within a one-hour time period, regardless of whether they transfer from the metro to a bus or vice versa.
Passengers using a student EasyCard can get a discount of NT$6, and those holding a Charity, Escort, Senior or
Concessionaire card can get a discount of NT$4. The number of people who took advantage of the opportunity to
receive discounts on transfers increased from 170,200 per day when the program first started to 444,100 per day at
the end of 2010, showing that the program has had a substantial effect on promoting public transport usage.

In accordance with the Taipei City Government's transportation policy, in 2002 TRTC began to shoulder the entire
cost of the transfer discounts (metro to bus transfers and vice versa) . The cost of the transfer discounts was
NT$1.065 billion in 2010, bringing the accumulated total cost of the program to NT$8.337 billion.

Profit Overview

TRTC operated at a loss for the first two years after operations began in
1996, but began to turn a profit in 1998 as the network gradually expanded.
In 2001, profits were affected when TRTC began to pay rental fees and cover
the cost of transfer discounts, but apart from 2003, when profits fell to NT$360
million owing to SARS, from 2002 to 2008, after-tax profits stayed between
NT$600 and NT$800 million. In 2009, the Neihu section of the Wenhu Line
began running. Before operations began, TRTC committed a large amount of
manpower and start-up funds. At the start of operations, the Wenhu Line was
relatively unstable, which caused ridership growth to fall short of expectations,
lowering after-tax profits to NT$290 million. In 2010, however, as the Wenhu
Line gradually stabilized and capacity increased with the opening of the
Luzhou Line, after-tax profits increased to NT$406 million.

BERR LIS EEE After-tax Profits by Year

BBt
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Note: The Taipei Municipality Audit Division, Department of Audit, examined the balances from 1996 to 2009. Accounts for 2010 were self-
prepared.
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Over the years TRTC has striven to provide a safe, convenient, and comfortable travel environment. In 2010, it
continued to enhance its existing facilities and equipment and raise service quality, so passengers could enjoy
better and more considerate service.

EeRBRERBULZEZEMRIE » RITRIBREME - EWEXBIFRN » BN THER 5 DEMULE
SHRBFESSR  $HHE—1TESHERNE - WIHESEXNHEEERRIEASSIRR -

To improve service quality and establish a safe transport environment, apart from carrying out system equipment
and train maintenance and repair work, TRTC strives to reduce the occurrence of metro delays that last five or more
minutes, find the cause of each train incident and make improvements. It also holds disaster simulation drills and

works to strengthen employee training.
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Raising System Stability

TRTC carries out regular system facility and equipment maintenance
and repair work. To ensure stability, in 2010, TRTC continued to
implement its Metro System Operations Stability Management
Plan. It also set a standard of raising its mean kilometers between
failures (MKBF, or the number of kilometers a train travels on
average between incidents that delay its service by five or more
minutes) to above 1.2 million car-kilometers. Through the hard work
of all employees, in 2010 there were only 42 incidents where trains
were delayed by five or more minutes, enabling the MKBF to reach
2,004,589 car-kilometers, the system's best-ever rating.

To solve the malfunctions that occurred when the Wenhu Line
began operating, in 2010, TRTC continued to improve the line's
train system, communication (including network communication)
system, signal system, power supply system, and auxiliary power
supply equipment (including the uninterruptible power supply) .
In July 2010, TRTC updated the control center computer software
and power connection software, plus it completed purchase
and installation of a compatible control room computer reserve
mainframe. Moreover, while completing improvements to the Wenhu
Line system and equipment, TRTC deployed attendants on trains.
The attendants were sent to monitor key equipment, direct and
manage passenger crowds at the stations, and carry out inspections
and improvements on the trains. By responding to sudden system
problems, through the hard work of all employees, the Wenhu Line's
MKBF for 2010 reached 1,323,605 car-kilometers.

2000 F £ 2010 FMTESHEERAEHERE
Mean Kilometers Between Failure by Year (2000 to 20I0)
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Note: Tests to integrate the old and new systems on the Wenhu Line were behind the MKBF drop to 1,045,000 car-kilometers in 2009.
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To provide a safe and reliable environment
for passengers waiting for the train to
arrive, and to avoid people or items
falling onto the tracks, TRTC completed
installation of platform screen doors at the
two main transfer stations, Taipei Main
Station and Zhongxiao Fuxing Station in 2006. Continuing with this effort, TRTC completed installation and
began operating platform screen doors at Yuanshan, Sun Yat-Sen Memorial Hall and Taipei City Hall stations.
In response to increased capacity as the network grows, TRTC plans to add platform doors at an additional 15
stations (including 36 platform sides) within four years, with work starting in 2011. These improvements will
enable TRTC to maintain a safe riding environment.

At high-capacity system stations that do not have platform screen doors, installation of the world's first Track
Intrusion Detection System, developed by TRTC, was finished in September 2008. Through the end of
December 2010, the system detected 179 incidents of track intrusions. When people or objects did intrude
onto the tracks, automatic warning alarms and immediate alerts sent to station attendants effectively lowered
losses and reduced delays.

Disaster Simulation Drills and Typhoon/Flood Disaster Prevention Inspections

To prepare for disasters and reduce injury, death and property loss, in 2010, the Taipei Metro system and
Taipei Arena jointly completed 28 disaster simulation drills. Situations included system error, natural disasters
and operational crisis. The purpose of the drills was to ensure that personnel on the first line of defense
against a disaster could become proficient in responding to and handling emergencies. In addition, TRTC
and fire, ambulance and police units familiarized themselves with necessary procedures so that they could
minimize death, injury and property damage in the case of a real disaster.

To ensure operational safety during the typhoon season and floods, apart from carrying out regular
maintenance and repair work on flood-prevention equipment and facilities, every year TRTC conducts
regular typhoon and flood disaster preparedness inspections. The inspections ensure the effectiveness of
precautionary measures.

Modifying the Gap Between Platforms and Trains on the High-capacity System

To avoid accidental injury from passengers stepping in the gap between the platform and train, in 2010 TRTC
added rubber support pads at 1,250 locations near doors where the gap between the platform and train was
relatively large.
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TRTC has always worked hard to offer a convenient and comfortable travel environment for its passengers, and
the public has approved of previous measures it has implemented to improve services. In 2010, TRTC continued
to put forward innovative and friendly service policies. Key measures included:

Adding a Second Entry/Exit to Stations

The number of riders on the Taipei Metro has steadily increased since the Danshui Line opened in 1997.
Increased ridership has made having only a single entry and exit at some stations inadequate. To make it easier
for passengers to enter and exit stations, TRTC added a second entry and exit to some stations. In November
2010, second entries and exits were completed and went into use at Shipai, Zhishan and Qilian stations, making
service more convenient for passengers using these stations.

Continuing Free Shuttle Buses

Shuttle bus service was offered between the Taipei Nangang Exhibition Center and Nangang stations starting
from July 4, 2009, when the Wenhu Line opened for service. The service was offered in line with city government
policy and because train service connecting the Nangang and Wenhu lines had not yet opened. Buses arrived
every three minutes during peak times on weekdays and every five to eight minutes during weekends and off-
peak hours. The buses traveled between the two stations without making any stops, providing a convenient,
economic way of traveling between the stations. Average daily ridership on the buses was 5,400 in 2010, with
1.97 million total trips.

Adding Two-level Bike Racks

TRTC designed and developed two-level bike racks in order to increase usage rate of bicycle parking spaces
near metro stations. The new racks reduce the 45-centimeter gap between parking spaces on single-level bike
racks to 35 centimeters. They were added on a trial basis starting in 2009, and a positive response from users
led TRTC to continue adding more the following year. By the end of 2010, it had installed 4,776 of the two-level
bike racks.

Adding Breastfeeding Rooms

To meet passenger needs and assist women in their right to breastfeed in public places, in 2010, TRTC added
breastfeeding rooms to the Ximen, Taipei City Hall, Nangang and Jiantan stations. The additions brought the
total number of stations on the network with breastfeeding rooms to 11. To continue safeguarding a woman's
right to breastfeed, TRTC will add breastfeeding rooms at transfer stations, where capacity tends to be higher.
These rooms will mean better care for breastfeeding mothers who ride the metro.
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Facilities and Equipment

Train Facilities

To enhance system safety and ensure operations run smoothly, trains undergo regular maintenance and overhauls.
In 2010, 47.5 trains on the high-capacity system underwent their six-year overhaul program. On the medium-
capacity system, VAL256 trains that had been part of the Muzha Line were overhauled to fit into the new Wenhu
Line. These trains began running on the Wenhu Line on Dec. 26, 2010. As a result, the availability rates on the
medium- and high-capacity systems were 86.5 and 94.3 percent, respectively.

Lighting and air conditioning quality in the trains have a direct effect on passenger comfort. In 2010, TRTC
completed work to improve the lighting on 301-type trains on the high-capacity system, raising illumination on the
trains to 25 percent. It also added vent controls to air conditioning units on 321- and 341-type trains to prevent the
AC vents from blowing directly on passengers and causing discomfort.

Improving the Station Environment

TRTC has always insisted on offering a safe, bright and clean riding environment. For these reasons, in 2010 it
continued to carry out ceiling and lighting fixture repair work along the Danshui and Wenhu lines, so passengers can
enjoy a bright station environment while waiting for their train. In 2010, ceiling and lighting fixture refurbishing was
finished at all stations on the Wenhu Line between Zhongshan Junior High School and Taipei Zoo stations.

TRTC began adding multimedia display systems on station platforms in 2005. Improved technology became
available since then, leading TRTC to upgrade old display systems in 2010, with the new systems providing clearer
images for broadcasting information. These system upgrades were carried out on 270 broadcast display units at 62
stations. Also, another 87 broadcast display units were added at 20 stations because of operations beginning on
new lines.
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In addition to facilities for riding the train, restrooms are an
important part of the stations. Since 2007, TRTC has been
refurbishing its restroom facilities and making other interior
design modifications, with the aim of increasing the number of
independent restrooms made especially for the handicapped
and parents with small children. It completed refurbishments in
2010 at Taipei Main, Ximen and Gongguan stations, bringing
the total number of stations with fully renovated restrooms to
11, along with two underground malls. Following the changes,
the ratio of men's to women's restrooms on the metro network
has increased from 1 to 1.48 during initial construction to 1 to
21.

To ensure the safety of the visually impaired and elderly, TRTC
added anti-slip strips to stairs along with contrasting colors that
help passengers see the stairway better. Through the end of
December 2010, it had completed work on the stairways at 63
stations and three areas of the underground malls.

TRTC's noise reduction efforts include cutting noise both on and off the trains, including adding sound barriers along
the tracks at both street-level and elevated portions of the metro. In 2010, it added barriers stretching 4,358 meters
to the Danshui Line, bringing the total length of barriers on the line to 17,871 meters. On the Muzha portion of the
Wenhu Line, TRTC added barriers stretching 4,068 meters, bringing the total length of its barriers to 4,808 meters.
Where barriers are completed, maximum noise levels can be reduced by 8 to 12 decibels.

Electrical equipment is a vital part of the metro, so maintaining its usability is a necessary part of preserving normal
operations. In 2010, TRTC carried out 14 electrical equipment replacement projects, including work to the water,
electric and firefighting systems, elevators and escalators, the power supply, and the communication system.

There are two emergency buttons to stop trains on each side of metro station platforms. If an emergency occurs,
passengers can press one of the buttons to alert station personnel. But there was a problem -- personnel had no
way to immediately know which button had been activated. Instead, they had to go down to the platform and check
each area, affecting the speed at which they could manage the problem. To improve this situation, TRTC finished
work in November 2010 on 123 sets of emergency buttons at stations along the Danshui, Xindian, Zhonghe, and
Bannan lines. It added emergency lights to signs that mark the buttons, which meant that by looking at the security
monitors, station personnel in the inquiry area could see which button had been activated. The change led to a
reduction in time needed to return to normal operations following activation of one of the emergency buttons.

Another factor which affects system stability, along with operation costs and expenditures, is the speed at which
circuit boards are fixed. For this reason, TRTC continues to develop inspection and repair tools while working to
enhance inspection and repair techniques. In 2010, it finished six inspection tool projects, including both design and
installation. These projects are able to raise the efficiency and effectiveness of maintenance and repair work. Also in
2010, TRTC conducted preventive maintenance on 4,157 circuit boards, an increase of 26.7 percent over the 3,282
from 2009. Meanwhile, the number of faulty circuit boards that required repairs dropped to 1,558, a drop of 22.1
percent from the 2,000 in 2010.
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Sustainable operations are a goal of any enterprise. To realize this goal, TRTC took the initiative to improve
operational effectiveness, implement sound management practices, and enhance the digitization of automated
operation procedures to build a solid foundation for sustainable operations.

€ncouraging New Ildeas

To encourage innovation among employees and active participation in improving the Taipei Metro, in 2006
TRTC began providing incentives for employees to submit proposals for improvement projects. The program
employs a two-phase judging system. The first phase rewards employees for finding problems on their own
and proposing ways to solve them. In the second phase, especially innovative and beneficial proposals are
further reviewed and their authors rewarded. In 2010, a total of 1,122 proposals were submitted, 842 of which
were awarded.

To encourage the effective implementation of large-scale improvement proposals, TRTC held the 2010
Presentation and Judging of Outstanding Proposals Event to recognize proposals that led to clear benefits.
Both the person who submitted the proposal and the department responsible for implementing it were invited
to attend. In 2009, 17 proposals were submitted for competition. The selection committee chose six proposals
for final consideration, and then the committee along with staff present at the event voted on the three most
outstanding proposals. Awards for the winners were NT$80,000, NT$50,000 and NT$30,000.

A proposal by TRTC employees on April 11, 2010, for making time schedule production more efficient led to
a patent application under the name “Time Schedule Production and Installation.” The patent was awarded
after the proposal passed review by the Intellectual Property Office, Ministry of Economic Affairs. It was
one example of how long-term, extensive technical development by TRTC has led to independent research
results from employees. Another came in Sept. 11, 2010, when TRTC introduced the country's first system
for displaying restroom occupancy. It also was awarded a patent and received extensive media attention,
exhibiting a concrete example of how TRTC works to understand people's needs and raise service quality.

Quality Control Circles

To foster an environment of teamwork and cooperation while encouraging employees to take the initiative to
make improvements, TRTC promotes quality control circles. Employees form their own groups to pool wisdom
and brainstorm to try to find better work methods and innovations. In 2010, a total of 80 circles met that were
effective in raising quality and bringing
both tangible and intangible benefits to the
company. One circle, the Beitou Guangming
Quality Control Circle from Rolling Stock
Plant 1 of the Rolling Stock Division, was
responsible for finding ways to lower
occurrences of temporary air conditioning
breakdowns on 301-type trains. Its effort
won a golden tower, the highest honor at the
23rd Nationwide Quality Control Circle Rally
and Competition, put on by the Industrial
Development Bureau under the Ministry of
Economic Affairs. Another group, the Train
Operations Division Control Center Hope
Circle, won a bronze tower at the competition
for its efforts to increase the thoroughness of
incident management instructions given by
control room personnel.
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Passenger Opinions

To maintain exceptional service quality and
provide customers with an opportunity to express
their opinions, TRTC provides a diverse range
of communication channels, including a 24-hour
customer service hotline and an electronic company
mailbox. There are also suggestion forms available
at each of the metro stations, or people can choose
to send a letter online to the mayor's mailbox. Also,
TRTC set up a single conduit for responding to
customer opinions as a way of raising efficiency.

In 2010, TRTC received 206,161 opinions from
customers, including 6,517 passenger opinion forms,
3,127 e-mails to the company mailbox, 3,173 letters
to the mayor's mailbox and 193,344 calls to the
customer service hotline. In addition, TRTC's 24-hour
customer service center received 341,556 calls, for a
monthly average of 28,463. Reasons for calls included
feedback on the attitude of personnel and inquiries
concerning opening hours, headway and systems
operations.
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Categories of Calls Handled by the Customer Service Center in 2010

SHZCH#EEE Maokong Gondola
NERRFBELTIEFS Service and Administration
SRR BELEIE System Equipment and Operation
BI2IRIE Surrounding Environment

ERZFF/HTE Ticketing
ERtE Trains
E5AE%{E Station Facilities

Elfftt Others
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€mployee Cultivation and Training

Through training programs for new employees, specialization, knowledge enhancement, management
and people skills, labor safety and health, and customer service training, TRTC can ensure that its
employees have all the skills needed to succeed at their jobs while building an effective and more
efficient workforce. In 2010, TRTC held a total of 1,509 training courses, which were attended 36,193
times. For service staff who interact directly with customers, it developed a systemized training program
by first analyzing training needs, designing a suitable curriculum and training materials, establishing
technical qualification certificate standards, and finally carrying out the training sessions and assessing
their effectiveness. The result was a complete training system that gives personnel the necessary tools
to effectively manage the metro's medium- and high-capacity systems while maintaining their technical
skills. In turn, staff can then meet system service standards.

To enhance business and leadership capabilities of company management, in 2010 TRTC held four
courses for new or transferred mid-level
managers and three courses for new
entry-level managers. In total, 179 people
received training. Also in 2010, TRTC
held one forum for upper-level managers,
four forums for mid-level managers and
six for entry-level managers, providing
training to a total of 836 people. Main
topics covered in the forums included
key short-term projects. In the end, the
forums effectively enhanced manager
knowledge.

TR

2010 F & T ZEIXERILEHY
2010 Employee Training Courses by Category
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Saving energy and reducing carbon emissions have been key global topics over the past several years. The
Executive Yuan's mid-term administrative plan includes promoting green transportation models as one of its
primary future development paths. To help achieve these ends, TRTC has not only been encouraging people
to use mass transit but also implementing energy-saving practices.

Promoting Green Transportation

To encourage people to use green, non-polluting forms of transportation and to promote healthy recreational
activities, on Jan. 17, 2004, Taipei Metro became the first rapid transit system in Asia to allow bicycles on
its trains. People could take their bicycles on or off the metro on weekends and holidays before 4pm at 15
designated stations. From July 21, 2007, the hours were extended to include the time period from 7pm to
close. Twelve more stations were added to the plan on March 1, 2008, and the price of bringing a bicycle
onto the metro was reduced to NT$80 (one ticket covering both the bike and the person) . Then, in April
2010, peak afternoon hours on weekends and holidays (from 4pm to 7pm) were added. People can bring
bicycles onto the metro on all holidays and weekends. In December of the same year in response to the
opening of the Luzhou Line, seven more stations joined the program, bringing the total number of bike-
friendly stations on the metro to 33. In 2010, people took 80,519 trips on the metro with a bike.

Producing a Green Miracle

The Department of Transportation of Taipei City and New Taipei City Government jointly held a series of
events to commemorate the 2010 World Car-free Day. TRTC assisted in these events by opening more
stations to bicycles, offering metro spaces and stations for holding activities, spreading information and
filming. These measures raised people's desire to take public transport.

To accommodate cycling events that were happening on that day, TRTC opened up Xinpu Station for people
to take their bikes on and off the metro. It also formulated crowd management plans ahead of the event to
better respond to the expected large volume of people. The result gave people a chance to experience the
convenience of mass transit. Together, participants were able to produce a green miracle.
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Results of TRTC Internal Energy Consumption Reduction Measures

mETRIRE * (RNE) | BiREE° (FiT)
Estimated Reduction Energy Cost
in CO, Emissions Reduction
(Metric Tons) (Thousands of NT$)

SRRV EE (B) BERER BBV E ()

Planned Estimated Actual Actual Estimated
Reduction (Unit) | Reduction % | Reduction (Unit)

2007 -1% -4,187,696 -1.09% -4,563,691 -2,907 -10,177
2008 -2% -8,375,392 -3.63% -15,210,778 -9,674 -33,920
2009 -6% -25,126,178 -6.70% -28,073,390 -17,490 -68,780
2010 -8% -33,501,572 -8.01% -33,5652,548 -20,903 -80,526

#11: 5200756 BIRFIEIRRLA2006 F/REE - HEZXFRI% - 2009F3BBEIRLA2006 FRESE  HEZFRD2%

512: CO B ERIKISEREEIRE [B7IHFPURE 2 :

2007 FEBEEHFMCO, : 0.637kg

2008 FFEEHMCO, : 0.636kg

2009FFEEHMCO, : 0.623kg

2010F R0 » BUHK2009 F R LEETE

#13:2007~2008F BEEFIIEE2.237T : 2009F BEEFIIE(E2.457T : 2010 FBEFTIIEE2 47T

Note 1: In June 2007, the city government called for annual electricity use reduction of 1 percent, using 2006 as the baseline year. In
March 2009, it revised the target to an annual reduction of 2 percent, keeping 2006 as the base year.

Note 2: Carbon dioxide emission figures are based on the emission intensity per kilowatt-hour of electricity announced by the Bureau
of Energy, Ministry of Economic Affairs:
2007: 0.637 kg of CO, emitted per kWh of electricity
2008: 0.636 kg of CO, emitted per kWh of electricity
2009: 0.623 kg of CO, emitted per kWh of electricity
2010: Not yet announced, so the figure from 2009 was used

Note 3: From 2007 to 2008, the average cost of 1 kilowatt-hour of electricity was NT$2.23, in 2009 the average cost was NT$2.45, and
in 2010 it was NT$2.4.
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Installing Solar Generators

TRTC set up solar generators on the roof of the Beitou Depot that started to produce electricity on July
10, 2010. As of Dec. 31, 2010, the generators had produced 21,374 kilowatt-hours of electricity, cutting
carbon emissions by 13,252 kilograms, equivalent to the carbon-reducing power of 8,595-square-
meters of forest. The result shows that the generators had produced a noticeable effect. The solar
cells also helped blocked sunlight from penetrating the building, producing a cooling effect indoors
that lowered the heat burden on air conditioners, thereby producing additional energy-saving, carbon-
reducing effects.

Internal Electricity Reduction Measures

TRTC strives to implement electricity reduction measures, which include increasing the efficiency of
lighting fixtures, air conditioning systems, escalators, etc. Using 2006 as a base year, it set a target of
2 percent annual electricity use reduction. In 2010, TRTC cut its real electricity usage by 33,552,548
kilowatt-hours, saving more than NT$80 million in electricity costs and representing an 8 percent drop
when compared to 2006, meaning it achieved the target set out in its electricity reduction plan.
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PUBLIC RELATIONS AND MARKETING ACTIVITIES
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TRTC continued to hold a variety of marketing activities to provide opportunities for the public to get a behind-
the-scenes look at the Taipei Metro. Through these interactions, people can gain a deeper understanding of
the metro's system facilities and equipment, encouraging them to become loyal metro riders. Hosting a diverse
array of cultural and recreational activities brings the metro closer to its passengers, turning it into a cultural
space as well as a mass transit provider.
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Special Guests and Riding on the Metro Tours During the Past 5 Years
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PUBLIC RELATIONS AND MARKETING ACTIVITIES

TRTC welcomes visitors to improve global recognition of the Taipei Metro
and assist the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and the Taipei City Government
in hosting foreign guests. In 2010, the metro hosted 127 groups (2,218
people), including 57 foreign delegations (624 people) , 36 mainland China
delegations (480 people), and 34 local agencies, organizations and schools
(1,114 people).

In addition, to advance the general public's understanding and experience
of the metro system, TRTC offers metro learning activities for school field
trips and holds “Riding on the Metro” tours. Professionals introduce guests
to the high-capacity system control center, station equipment and the train
maintenance and repair plant. All of the tours are free of charge, and, in 2010,
a total of 116 groups (5,372 people) took part.

TRTC has promoted regular visits by members of the public to metro
stations since 2004. It has invited residents living near stations, community
development associations and students to attend guided metro tours. People
who take the tours are able to familiarize themselves with emergency exit
routes and signs, firefighting equipment and evacuation procedures. In the
event of an emergency, they can assist in circulating information, handling
the situation or guiding other passengers along the proper evacuation route.
Apart from improving the ability of people to evacuate in the event of an
emergency, the visits help promote positive interaction between schools and
the community nearby metro stations. In 2010, 4,326 people took part in a
total of 111 tours.
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PUBLIC RELATIONS AND MARKETING ACTIVITIES

TRTC Provides Filming Locations, Assistance in Line With City Marketing
Plans

The Taipei Metro system and the Taipei Arena began collecting fees for people applying to use facilities
for filming starting from Oct. 1, 2007, and Sept. 1, 2008, respectively. To encourage movie and television
filming and city marketing projects, TRTC offered the Taipei Film Commission short-term location usage
(one week or less) free of charge. For projects extending beyond one week, it provided the commission
with a half-price discount. In addition, it offered the commission a half-price discount on water, electricity
and air conditioning usage for filming at the Taipei Arena's main and auxiliary areas starting from Oct. 23,
2009.

TRTC handled a total of 182 filming applications between January and December of 2010, with 169
applying to the metro and 13 to Taipei Arena. Total revenue from filming was NT$774,375. The Taipei
Film Commission assisted on 24 of the cases (22 on the metro and two at the arena) . TRTC offered a
total of NT$1,294,663 in discounts.

Beitou Resort Expands Customer Range

The Beitou Resort, located in the Beitou Depot, was opened to the public on July 14, 2002, as a way of
giving back to the community and effectively using company resources. Facilities available for the public
to rent include training classrooms, a lecture hall, a multi-purpose conference room, student dormitories,
basketball and badminton courts, table tennis, billiards, an aerobics room, squash courts, a fitness
center, a children's play area, a swimming pool, and evacuation training facilities. In 2010, the classrooms
were rented out 3,317 times, guests stayed at the dormitories a total of 9,417 days, and people used the
training and activities center on 162,305 occasions. In addition, people participated in evacuation training
31,321 times.
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PUBLIC RELATIONS AND MARKETING ACTIVITIES

TRTC hosted the 2009 creative open artwork activity Show -- The Heart of the Metro Activity. Pieces were accepted
between Nov. 3, 2009, and Feb. 23, 2010, with a total prize value of NT$650,000. The response was strong, with
767 pieces presented in the yonkoma manga contest, 189 in the 30-second creative animation contest, and 769
in the creative poster contest. After the time period ended for accepting works, TRTC displayed winning yonkoma
manga and poster entries in the metro's art corridor, prolonging benefits of the activity. In addition, to encourage
greater participation, TRTC held a photo upload prize draw. Through these activities, people were able to better
grasp station promotions and announcements, understand the meaning behind them, and internalize safety and
etiquette awareness.

For the 6th Metro Street Dance Competition, TRTC invited the members of S.H.E., one of Asia's leading girl bands,
to serve as spokeswomen. Preliminaries were held on July 17 and 18, 2010, at Jiannan Road Station, semifinals
on July 31 and finals on Aug. 21. A total of 202 teams registered, including 129 in the children's division and 73
in the youth division. Breaking from previous formats, this was the first year the event was held in conjunction
with Singapore and Malaysia. Teams that finished well in their street dance competitions were invited to Taipei to
compete in the finals, giving Taiwanese and foreign teams the chance to interact, observe and exchange ideas
through competition. It ended up being Taiwan's biggest street dancing event.

TRTC continues to roll out painted cars for the public benefit in cooperation with the Taipei City Government. Using
the 2010 Taipei International Flora Expo as a theme, it introduced 6 and 10 painted cars over two stages. The three
color schemes used for the cars were the clear Taipei sky, cloud cover at sunset, and the silent moon, each of which
were transformed using vast and various arrangements of different-sized flowers. The cars depicted famous Taipei
landmarks and buildings, giving a new look to the metro system and the streets of Taipei.
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PUBLIC RELATIONS AND MARKETING ACTIVITIES

The hard work TRTC has put into the Taipei Metro and the maintenance experience it has gained over
the years have already received deep public affirmation. To keep progressing, it holds exchanges with
experts in the transit field from Taiwan and overseas to absorb valuable opinions and experience for use
in developing future strategies.

TRTC actively participates in events arranged by Nova. It also shares experiences and exchanges
benchmarking ideas with metro operators from major cities around the world. Exchanges include
comparing performance norms, using questionnaires to communicate operations experience, discussion
of particular cases and year-end meetings.

The International Association of Public Transport (UITP) set up an exhibit at the 2010 Shanghai World
Expo (from May 1 to Oct. 30) in order to promulgate the key contributions mass transit systems make
toward urban sustainable development. TRTC was also invited to take part. Based on the theme UITP
was using at the World Expo, TRTC produced a short video on the Taipei Metro for the expo along with
posters and other items. Meanwhile, it used a series of promotional materials provided by UITP as a
background to design 200 posters and 15 light boxes to display in metro stations. Joining the exhibition
gave TRTC a chance to publicize its efforts to save energy, cut carbon emissions and promote metro
culture while also providing a platform for it to interact with the rest of the world and promote Taipei City.

TRTC took part in the 2010 CBTC World Congress, the 2010 6th UITP Asia-Pacific Congress and
the American Public Transportation Association (APTA) 2010 Expo. At these meetings, TRTC joined
discussions on operational experience using the CBTC system in foreign countries, the impact of
globalization on public transit development in the Asia-Pacific region, and rail system operations and
maintenance. Also, at the Middle East Rail 2010 conference in May, TRTC introduced the Taipei Metro
and shared its experiences in combining systems on the Wenhu Line. Moreover, in December 2010,
TRTC attended the UITP Metropolitan Railways Assembly for the first time. At the meeting, TRTC
introduced the Taipei Metro system and enhanced exchange efforts with other metro operators that are
a part of UITP. While in Spain for the meeting, officials had a chance to visit Barcelona's metro system,
using the experience as a reference point for future efforts to improve operations and service quality on
the medium-capacity system.
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The Taipei Metro's Luzhou Line (Luzhou Station to Zhongxiao Xinsheng Station) commenced operations on Nov.
3, 2010. The line (including the Xinzhuang Line city section) is a high-capacity system that is entirely underground.
It is 12.5 kilometers long and has 11 stations. After opening, it expanded the metro's network to include the Luzhou
and Sanchong areas and it is linked to the Danshui Line (Minquan West Road Station) and the Nangang Line
(Zhongxiao Xinsheng Station). In the future, after it expands to connect with the Zhonghe Line, it will be able to
converge with the Xindian Line (Guting Station), the Songshan Line (Songjiang-Nanjing Station) and the Xinyi Line
(Dongmen Station), resulting in a metro network that is accessible from all directions. At that time, it not only will be
able to relieve traffic in the Greater Taipei area but also will bring prosperity and convenience to the region.
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Although Greater Taipei residents looked forward to the early opening of the Luzhou Line, TRTC
maintained vigilance during preparations, including conducting system reliability tests and civil
engineering work; supervising the handing over of electric machinery and other facilities and
equipment to regular operators; holding drills to practice handling abnormalities that could arise
during operations; and carrying out preliminary inspection preparations. New personnel were
hired and trained, raising the staff's familiarity with rules and procedures related to each piece of
equipment. The training measures strengthened overall response ability, in turn enhancing system
stability and providing passengers with higher-quality transit service. TRTC completed its preliminary
inspections preparation work on Aug. 23, 2010, followed by the Taipei City Government's preliminary
inspections on Sept. 5 and inspections by the Ministry of Transportation and Communications on Oct.
17. The line officially began operating on Nov. 3.

The opening of the Luzhou Line changed Taipei's transit system. To give people sufficient time to
get used to the new line, TRTC offered a one-month free trial period (applicable to people with an
EasyCard who entered or exited on any of the 11 Luzhou Line stations, including the Xinzhuang Line
city section, and covering the distance they rode on the Luzhou Line and the Xinzhuang Line city
section). The promotion encouraged people to try out the new line and experience its comfort and
convenience. It also gave people in Luzhou and Sanchong the chance to enjoy fast, reliable, and safe
transit service.
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When the Maokong Gondola formally opened on July 4, 2007, it became Taipei City's first tourist cable car. The line
extends 4.03 kilometers, making it Taiwan's longest cable-car system. It has six stations, including four passenger
stations and two corner stations.

After beginning operations, the Maokong Gondola became one of the country's most popular tourist destinations.
The response enabled ridership to break through the 5 million mark within the system's first year of operations.
But then, in September 2008, the Maokong area was hit by two strong typhoons, Sinlaku and Jangmi. A landslide
occurred under tower T16, leading officials to suspend service starting from Oct. 1. During the stoppage, the Taipei
City Government moved T16 and carried out slope-repair work beside Wanshou Road. Meanwhile, TRTC tested the
gondola system and improved the surrounding environment, in the hope of providing a safer, and more enjoyable
riding experience when service resumed.
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System Inspections and Improvements

To ensure operational safety of the Maokong Gondola once operations resumed, TRTC carried out a series of
annual tests under the guidance of the French system manufacturer POMA, including electric, machinery (load
tests) , station and car tests. The work was carried out from Feb. 24 to March 1, 2010. After POMA verified the
test results on March 4, the system was ready to resume operations.

While the system was shut down, TRTC carried out a number of safety upgrades, including adding a crown
gear support system, enhancing emergency response capabilities, installing an earthquake warning system,
and setting up links to 10 earthquake warning devices on the metro system and the Central Weather Bureau's
earthquake warning system. The improvements enable workers on the gondola to immediately receive
earthquake-related information. Moreover, operators installed a land, sea and air monitoring mechanism. The
mechanism includes an automatic tilt plate monitoring system, strata inclinometers and location monitoring
prisms for monitoring stability and safety of gondola towers and surrounding slopes. As an additional safety
measure, TRTC added extra water management inspections and improved maintenance procedures.

To ensure that operations could begin again without any safety concerns, the city government invited 11
experts and scholars to serve on an inspection committee. The committee was broken down into civil
engineering, machinery and operations groups and conducted inspections on March 4, 2010. After looking
over documents and conducting on-site investigation and simulated drills, the committee pointed out three
improvements that needed to be made before operations resumed, six general improvements, and 14
recommended items. The items that needed to be improved before resuming operations were finished on
March 11, 2010. After Taiwan's Chinese Union of Professional Civil Engineer Associations determined that
there were no further safety concerns, the Maokong Gondola formally resumed operations on March 30, 2010.
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Riding Environment Improvements

Apart from enhancing system safety, TRTC carried out numerous improvements to the station
surroundings and the riding environment to once again turn the Maokong Gondola into a beloved
tourist attraction. The hope was to provide a breathtaking journey for both the eyes and the ears.
Measures included replacing directional markings, signs and lines both inside and outside of
stations and creating a more recreational atmosphere by installing animal-shaped LED lights and
a musical clock along the outer wall of Taipei Zoo Station. A feeling of freshness was added to the
riding experience by decorating the gondola cars with 10 different cute animal paintings. In addition,
the Taipei Water Department installed landscaping fountains on the west side of Taipei Zoo. The
fountains combine sound and light to make 12 water performances, giving people the chance to enjoy
an unusual viewing experience. To provide riders on the gondola with even more beautiful mountain
scenery, after operations began on March 30, TRTC launched one transparent car. Later, on Nov.,
it launched 30 more of the “Eyes of Maokong Gondola” cars as a thank you to customers for their
support.
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Marketing Activities

For six days from March 23 to 28, 2010, TRTC held a promotional activity on the gondola, opening it to
10,000 riders for a free ride. At both the gondola's Taipei Zoo and Maokong stations, passengers took
a number and then returned to the station to take the gondola based on their number in the queue.
In addition, to give nearby community leaders a chance to understand the safety and environmental
improvements made to the gondola ahead of resuming service, the leaders, along with people living in
Wenshan District and disabled and disadvantaged groups, were invited to attend a special tour of city
government buildings and ride the gondola. The event took place on March 29, 2010, and people who
participated expressed satisfaction and approval about the improved Maokong Gondola. Also, to raise
awareness of Maokong's environment among Taipei City students and encourage them to spend time
in Maokong, TRTC offered discounts on the gondola during the summer vacation, in line with a city
government request. Discounts ranged from free rides to half price discounts.

Receiving ISO 900l Certification

To raise service quality on the Maokong Gondola, TRTC applied to the Bureau of Standards, Metrology
and Inspection, Ministry of Economic Affairs, for the gondola system to be included under the ISO 9001
quality management system. TRTC made the application on July 29, 2010, and it passed the bureau's
initial assessment on Sept. 10. On Nov. 5, the bureau went to the gondola site to gather information.
Its evaluation showed that the gondola met the standards for certification. In addition to items that had
previously met approval, the bureau determined that the gondola system's operations and maintenance
service met the necessary standards. On Dec. 7, 2010, it gave TRTC the ISO 9001 certification
credentials.
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Taipei Arena

The Taipei Arena is Taiwan's first large-scale international
multi-use arena. It can seat approximately 15,000 people for
sporting events, exhibitions, meetings, cultural performances
and concerts. More than 2,000 ping (6,611 square meters)
have been set aside for commercial use, providing space
to eat, shop and relax. The auxiliary Ice Land is Taiwan's
only ice rink that conforms to international standards. There
is space for 800 spectators in the stands and up to 400
people can use the ice rink. Aside from serving as a public
recreational facility, the rink serves as a training ground for
national team athletes and cultivating new skaters. A wide
range of classes are offered, giving people who enjoy skating
sports a variety of choices.

The Taipei City Government commissioned TRTC to operate
the arena from Sept. 1, 2008 to Dec. 31, 2010. Owing to
TRTC's positive track record, the city government renewed
its contract to run the arena, lasting through to Dec. 31, 2012.

Operating Achievements

The main hall of the Taipei Arena was built to hold events.
It is available for a wide range of activities, including
concerts, entertainment and cultural performances, sporting
competitions and other large-scale gatherings and public
welfare functions. In 2010, the attendance rate reached
775,524 at the main hall of the Taipei Arena and 270,524
in Ice Land, for a total of 1,046,048, an increase of 23,405,
or 2.3 percent, from the previous year's attendance of
1,022,643. The arena was used 313 days in 2010 for a usage
rate of 85.8 percent, an increase of 7.7 percentage points
from 2009's usage rate of 78.1 percent and a new high.

In addition to the main hall and Ice Land, TRTC is involved
in advertising and operating shops and the parking lot at
the arena. There are 23 spaces for shops in the arena, and,
through Dec. 31, 2010, 22 of these had been rented out. The
total space rented out was 2,073.76 ping, out of an available
2,285.37 ping, bringing the usage rate to 90.7 percent and
representing a significant jump from 2009's usage rate of
50.1 percent.
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When operations began on the Luzhou Line on Nov. 3, 2010, it signified the opening of the second-stage network
expansion. In 2011, the Nangang Line's Eastern Extension to the Taipei Nangang Exhibition Center Station began
operations, meaning the Circular Line had already begun to take shape. The next several years mark another period of
rapid growth for Taipei Metro. Before Xinzhuang Line's Danfeng and Huilong stations begin service in 2015, a new line will
begin operating every year, including the Xinzhuang, Xinyi, Songshan lines, and the Tucheng Line's Dingpu Extension.
When these developments are complete, the entire feeling of Greater Taipei will again be transformed. Residents will be
able to enjoy mass transit service that is more expansive and more convenient. In addition, to operating lines that now
exceed 100 kilometers in length and with a yearly ridership of more than 500 million, Taipei Metro will be able to progress
from being a member of the Nova consortium of medium-sized metro systems to one of COMET, a consortium consisting
of large metro systems. Once it is a member of COMET, Taipei Metro will be able to study and grow together with the
metro systems in cities like New York, London, Paris and Moscow. It will mark the start of a new era for the Taipei Metro.

The Taipei Metro forms the backbone of mass transit in the Greater Taipei area. It is an integral part of people's lifestyle
and a key urban development leader. With rich and abundant experience operating a metro system behind it, for years
TRTC has been focusing on enhancing system safety, improving its ability to carry out its own repairs and strengthening
its competitiveness. The goal is to provide customers with comfortable transit service that makes them feel at ease. At
the same time, TRTC has focused on customer needs while promoting friendly service measures, all as it heads toward
its goal of continuing to provide a high-quality transit service. Apart from working toward its accomplishments in the rail
transit field, TRTC accepted commissions to run the Maokong Gondola and the Taipei Arena. This work has enabled
TRTC to accumulate operations management experience in other fields while providing Taipei area residents with a
greater variety of high-quality recreational and lifestyle activities to choose from. Investments TRTC has made include
the EasyCard Investment Holding Corporation. The functions of the EasyCard have expanded to include the small-
value purchase market, enabling it to serve as an electronic wallet. The added features have made the EasyCard even
more convenient and closely integrated with people's lives, essentially turning it into a “lifestyle card.” Another company
TRTC holds a stake in, the Metro Consulting Service Corporation, has enabled it to gradually develop new market niches.
Through Metro Consulting, TRTC is able to provide other rail operators in the Asia-Pacific area with professional technical
and operational planning and consulting service.

TRTC has helped Taipei to develop its unique urban charm. By providing a clean, comfortable metro riding environment
along with beautiful stations and art exhibition spaces, it successfully tempers the rushed pace of urban life. TRTC
is there for people when they head to work and leave, and for their reading, shopping and recreational needs. Many
beautiful journeys start with TRTC. Looking to the future, TRTC will continue to strengthen its primary industry and
enhance development of affiliated businesses. It will dedicate itself to launching new service measures as it works toward
becoming a leader in providing excellent mass transit service. TRTC will combine business, relaxation and culture as it
strives to build its operations so that it covers many different areas. As it gradually advances in its efforts to provide people
with a high-quality lifestyle, it will adhere to the service principle of sustainable operations, so it can continue fulfilling its
vision of providing a people-friendly transit service that is safe, reliable, comfortable, and convenient.
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For the convenience of readers and for information purpose only, the auditors’ report and the
accompanying financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between
the English version and the original Chinese version or any differences in the interpretation of
the two versions, the Chinese-language auditors’ report and financial statements shall prevail.

Report of Independent Accountants Translated from Chinese
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation as of December 31, 2010, and
the related statements of income, of changes in stockholders’ equity, and of cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the 2010 financial statements of long-
term investments accounted for under the equity method. These long-term investments amounted to $368,257,000
as of December 31, 2010, and the related investment income was $60,635,000 for the year then ended. The financial
statements of these investee companies were audited by other auditors, whose reports thereon have been furnished to
us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in the financial statements for these
long-term investments are based solely on the reports of the other auditors. The 2009 financial statements were also
examined by the Taipei Municipality Audit Division. The differences from the audited amounts are described in Note 20.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Rules Governing the Examination of Financial Statements by Certified
Public Accountants” and generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of China. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the
reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the 2010 financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation as of December 31,
2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with the Business Entity
Accounting Law, Regulation on Business Entity Accounting Handling and generally accepted accounting principles in the
Republic of China.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

March 30, 2011

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of operations and
cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the
Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such financial
statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements and report of independent accountants are not intended for use by
those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any
liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from
the translation.
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TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31,

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars; the 2008 balances were examined by the Taipei Municipality Audit

Division)
I
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash (Note 4) 326,512 2 S 182,391 1
,(L\'\\l/siljisa)le-for-sale financial assets-current 2595,623 17 3,475,211 24
I(-lNe(I)cti:g)-maturity financial assets-current 733,897 5 299910 3
Receivables (Notes 16 and 18)
Accounts receivable-net 105,747 1 81,105 1
Other receivables 219,780 1 150,834 1
Inventories-net (Note 7) 1,913,201 13 1,951,364 14
Prepayments 233,093 2 223,338 2
6,127,853 41 6,364,153 45
Funds, Investments and Long-term
Receivables
:—iNe(l?:;—maturlty financial assets-non-current 969,939 7 1,836,257 13
S w22 s
1,338,196 9 2,015,014 14
Fixed Assets (Note 9)
Buildings and improvements 26,985 - 28,162 -
Machinery and equipment 500,523 3 417,852 3
Transportation equipment 3,532,188 23 3,699,606 26
Miscellaneous equipment 108,654 1 84,611 1
Leasehold improvements 1,009,590 7 1,030,515 7
Construction in progress and prepayments 2,184,913 15 379,149 3
7,362,853 49 5,639,895 40
Intangible Assets (Notes 10 and 14) 140,152 1 220,401 1
Other Assets 1,837 - 1,769 -
Miscellaneous assets (Note 11) 6,009 - 7,607 -
Deferred assets (Notes 12 and 16) 7,846 - 9,376 -

TOTAL ASSETS $ 14,976,900 100 $ 14,248,839 100




LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Income tax payable (Note 16)
Accrued expenses (Notes 13 and 18)
Other payables

Receipts under custody (Note 18)

Unearned revenue (Note 18)

Long-term Liability

Accrued pension liability (Note 14)

Other Liabilities
Miscellaneous liabilities
Deposits in

Other liabilities — others (Note 18)

Total liabilities
Stockholders' equity
Common stock
Additional paid in capital
Retained earnings (Note 15)
Appropriated retained earnings

Unappropriated retained earnings

Unrealized gain or loss on financial assets

(Note 5)

Total stockholders' equity

Commitments (Note 19)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

62,247 . 78,472 1
= = 35,922 =
1,652,830 1 1,334,899 10
134,329 1 185,900 1
603,620 4 319,882 2
2,453,026 16 1,955,075 14
347948 2 383,160 2
2,800,974 18 2,338,235 16
124,573 1 185,961 1
403,963 3 377,324 3
18,173 = 13,235 =
422,136 3 390,559 3
3,347,683 22 2,914,755 20
9,354,100 63 9,354,100 66
3,448 - - -
826,437 6 797,233 6
1,410,725 9 1,165,155 8
34,507 = 17,596 =
11,629,217 78 11,334,084 80
14,976,900 100 14,248,839 100
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TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars; the 2009 balances were examined by the Taipei Municipality Audit

Division)

Operating revenues
Fare revenues

Other operating revenues (Note 18)

Operating costs (Notes 7, 17 and 18)
Transportation costs

Other operating costs

Gross profit

Operating expenses (Notes 17 and 18)
Selling
Operating outlay
Administrative

Other operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating income

Financial income
Interest income

Investment income accounted for under the
equity method (Note 8)

Dividend income
Rental revenue
Gain on disposal of assets
Exchange gain
Other non-operating income (Note 18)
Total non-operating income
Non-operating expenses
Financial expense
Interest expense
Exchange loss
Other non-operating expense
Total non-operating expenses

Income before income tax
Income tax expense (Note 16)

Netincome

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
See PricewaterhouseCoopers’ audit report dated March 30, 2011.

$ 10,710,917 87 $ 9,886,726 88
1,604,991 13 1,298,739 12

12,315,908 100 11,185,465 100

( 9,083,497) ( 74) ( 8,385,877) ( 75)
( 762,675) ( 6) ( 581,447) ( 5)
( 9,846,172) (_80) ( 8,967,324) (__ 80)
2,469,736 20 2,218,141 20

( 1,066,237) ( 9 ( 1,010,561) ( 9)
( 667,352) ( 5 ( 667,379) ( 6)
( 447940) (  4) ( 453,939) ( 4)
( 127179) ( 1) ( 115,147) ( 1)
( 2,308,708) ( 19) ( 2,247,026) ( 20)
( 161,028) 1 28,885 -
48,797 - 64,666 1

60,635 1 43,161 5

- - 619 -

27,682 - 33,718 -

2,175 - 44,804 S

- - 248 5

129,732 1 205,429 2

269,021 2 392,645 3

( 61) - 48) -
( 797) - - -
( 21,862) - ( 14,954) =
( 22,720) - ( 15,002) -
407,329 3 348,758 3

( 1,598) - ( 56,723) -
$ 405,731 3 $ 292,035 3
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TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars; the 2009 balances were examined by the Taipei Municipality Audit Division)

Balance at January 1, 2009 $9354100 $ -5 736,179 $ 1,209,184 S 528 $11,299,991

Appropriations of 2008 net income:

Legal reserve - - 61,054 ( 61,054) - -
Cash dividends - - - ( 275,010) - (275010
Net income for 2009 = = = 292,035 = 292,035

Unrealized gain on available-for-

. - - - - 7,492 7,492
sale financial assets
Proportional adjustments for
investee companies' unrealized gain - - - - 9,576 9,576
on available-for-sale financial assets

Balance at December 31, 2009 $9,354,100 $ - S 797233 $ 1,165,155 $ 17596 $11,334,084

Appropriations of 2009 net income:

Legal reserve - - 29,204 ( 29,204) - -
Cash dividends - - - ( 130,957) - ( 130,957)
Net income for 2010 - - - 405,731 - 405,731

Unreallzed.galn on available-for- ) ) ) ) 17134 17134
sale financial assets

Change in ownership percentage
of long-term equity investments - 3,448 - - - 3,448
accounted for under equity method

Proportional adjustments for
investee companies' unrealized loss - - - - 223) ( 223)
on available-for-sale financial assets

Balance at December 31, 2010 $9,354100 $ 3448 $ 826,437 $ 1,410,725 S 34,507 $11,629,217

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
See PricewaterhouseCoopers’ audit report dated March 30, 2011.
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TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR
THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars; the 2008 balances were examined by the Taipei Municipality Audit
Division)

2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 405,731 $ 292,035
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Provision for reserve ( 6,700)  ( 36,251)
Provision for bad debts 2,893 1,097
Depreciation and depletion 486,667 486,094
Amortization 27,558 39,178
Loss (gain) on disposal of fixed assets 9,614 ( 39,271)
Others ( 65930) ( 48,343)
Net increase in current assets ( 60,303) ( 266,074)
Net increase in current liabilities 462,740 298,377
Net change in deferred income tax assets 1,598 13,473
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,263,868 740,315
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net decrease (increase) in available-for-sale financial assets 1,198,900 ( 529,547)
Net decrease in long-term investments 133,000 33,000
Net increase in intangible assets and other assets ( 9,776)  ( 6,560)
Decrease in fixed assets and deferred assets 198 1M
Cash provided by other investing activities 360 520
Increase in funds and long-term receivables ( 126,000)  ( 500,000)
Increase in fixed assets and deferred assets ( 2,217,049) ( 413,680)
Net cash used in investing activities ( 1,020,367) ( 1,416,156)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in other liabilities 31,577 40,051
Payment of cash dividends ( 130,957) ( 275,010)
Net cash used in financing activities ( 99,380) ( 234,959)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 144,121 ( 910,800)
Cash at beginning of year 182,391 1,093,191
Cash at end of year $ 326,512 $ 182,391
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 61 $ 48
Income tax $ 41,259 $ 101,909
Investing activities with partial cash payment:
Acquisition of fixed assets and deferred assets $ 2,221,345 $ 418,030
Less: donated assets ( 4,296) ( 4,350)
Cash paid $ 2,217,049 $ 413,680

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

See PricewaterhouseCoopers' audit report dated March 30, 2011.
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TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated; the 2009 balances were examined by the Taipei
Municipality Audit Division)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

The Company was incorporated in the Republic of China (“ROC”) as a company limited by shares on July 27, 1994. The
Company's registered and issued capital at December 31, 2010 amounted to $9,354,100. The major business activities of the
Company include the provision of public rapid transit services, public rapid transit business consulting service, sales of general
merchandise, advertising, and the leasing of signboards and parking lots. Major operating properties of the Company are
leased from the Taipei City Government and the lease terms cover the period from March 2001 to December 2010. Besides,
the Company signed a Taipei metro system property lease memorandum with Taipei City Government on January 1, 2011,
which is valid for six months after the signing date. The two parties have to sign a formal lease contract before the expiry of the
memorandum.

The Taipei City Government owns 73.75% of the Company's outstanding shares.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had 4,591 and 4,077 employees, respectively.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

As a government operated enterprise, accounting and financial statements are prepared in accordance with the laws and
regulations issued by the government. Matters not provided therein shall be treated in accordance with the Business Entity
Accounting Law, Regulation on Business Entity Accounting Handling and accounting principles generally accepted in the
Republic of China. The accounts are subject to annual examinations by the Taipei Municipality Audit Division (TMAD) ,
Department of Audit. The 2009 balances were examined by the TMAD. The beginning balances in the 2010 balance sheet are
subject to the 2009 balances examined by the TMAD. The summary of significant accounting policies is as follows:

1) Criteria for classifying assets and liabilities as current or non-current items

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are classified as non-current
assets

(1) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized or consumed, or are intended to be sold within
the normal operating cycle;

(2) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
(3) Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(4) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are to be exchanged or used
to pay off liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise they are classified as non-
current liabilities:

(1) Liabilities arising from operating activities that are expected to be paid off within the normal operating cycle;
(2) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;
(3) Liabilities that are to be paid off within twelve months from the balance sheet date;
(4) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than twelve months after the
balance sheet date.
2) Foreign currency transactions

(1) The Company maintains its accounts in New Taiwan dollars. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into New Taiwan dollars at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates.

(2) Receivables, other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the spot exchange
rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss.
3) Available-for-sale financial assets

(1) Available-for-sale financial assets are recognized using trade date accounting and are initially stated at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

~

(2) The financial assets are remeasured and stated at fair value, and the gain or loss is recognized in equity, until the financial
asset is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity shall be recognized in profit
or loss. The fair values of listed stocks, OTC stocks and closed-end mutual funds are based on latest quoted fair prices of the
accounting period. The fair values of open-end and balanced mutual funds are based on the net asset value at the balance
sheet date.

If there is any objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognized directly
in equity shall be transferred from equity to profit or loss. When the fair value of an equity instrument subsequently
increases, impairment losses recognized previously in profit or loss shall not be reversed. When the fair value of a debt
instrument subsequently increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be reversed to the extent of the loss recognized in profit or

loss.
100 I6]

—~
w
~




(F)

1.

2.

()

(%)

()

()

(71)

1.

(+)

FREIMPREMEE

RIRRZHEET - RRGFRIIF - SERBEmUATEEEE > WINFTEISZIRZMA -
fRIFHEEREERUNTEERE - BHEELIIIRRFERARIER » REIANBNIERNREMEE
BROUET - SIAEHRER - £/ CIBRE » SIFREEEREFAEEMRUEERBRHLRAMBINEERR
FEE - FNAERRUEERBERARESFEEBERLHEE

. EBERBEZEHER - AFRYIREERX - SREHEBIETERY - BEnEmBERDEER » FBYIRBR

REmMRARIER  BEFERIBERDEE - SRBERIIREREECSHER - BITLLEE IR
EHAEM -

FELIRSR
FRREERM » HHBLEEEMEREBBIR » HREMNXFIBEEIMBERARER - EEHEET—F
LIREE - BEIMREEFIREEZEEAK » BIMKITRETE

fBER M
BERKREKBERERSZERRIEE - FEEESERHRBNER  BNIRNSSEREZRE
HINDIE]RENE - FLAFF GRS »

=8

BiEEECAmETERERX LHENEMERIFULERBNBFRIERIPBERMEE  RRSE - ZTERKEE
Gl FRUBERESHARARER » BINZGIBRBETIIEA - BIRERFERNSEFEIREBNE
B8 [EBRNAESRIREENER  REELRE - & CHEAIERIFFIUHERBIHFRITRIFBRE
MRS » BRERBREND IR RERIEER

REMARECRIIRERE
FERRERTIERRERDILAE 20% L ENEBEEXFENE » REMETE -

DIBSRARARER » WiSEZIEC 8RN EENE - N2HBmKRIRUR S ERNRE
REBIRERZE » (B ITHEFENBIESLRITIRERER -

. UETHELINAHCEEEESSHEETEMREEEELRIIHEERE -
 TERTTBPRERT R RS [HYIREDRR | RIEERER > NSt —FRERTIIEREY - HEELRNEK

BRFRBESHERERBEERTITIEEE - TRECEEMRERFEERZEYR 30 N 8557R 2
FE BT - BEEERDEMIIREMEXNNZIET -

B EE
E RSN BE R AN IR TE ST R T PRI 85 o

(+—) WA

B RSFBIR R - SRIIRUA « BEBIAREBMEEUAKIZHVER - BRI  BESBILZER
B i N RIEER BB AENRERIIRIA - BARERKES HERRBLERDIIRE
HIBR - ZEEEEETBER2I/) EECEENARNES - 2IRESHRICHERETE - LIRED R
SN R LIFBHE -



4)

Held-to-maturity financial assets

5) Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable represent claims resulting from the sale of goods, services or lease assets. The fair value of
accounts receivable shall be calculated based on the imputed interest rate. Accounts receivable which are collectible
within one year, where the difference between the fair value and the value at maturity is insignificant and trading is
also frequent, need not be measured at fair value.

6) Allowance for doubtful accounts

7)

8)

Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on an evaluation of the collectibility and aging analysis of notes
and accounts receivable at the balance sheet date.

Inventories

Inventories include merchandise for sale and consumable and non-consumable materials and fuel for internal use.
The perpetual inventory system is adopted for inventory recognition.

Inventories are stated at cost, which is determined using the moving-average method. At the end of period,
merchandise for sale is evaluated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, and the individual item approach is used
in the comparison of cost and net realizable value. Allowance for obsolescence is provided for slow-moving items of
the consumable and non-consumable materials and fuel for internal use.

Long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method

Long-term equity investments in which the Company holds more than 20% of the investee company's voting shares
or has the ability to exercise significant influence on the investee's operations are accounted for under the equity
method.

9) Fixed assets

10)

1)

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Interest incurred during the construction or installation of the assets is capitalized.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred; major additions, renewals and improvements are capitalized
and depreciated accordingly.

Capital leases are capitalized at the present value of all payments and lease obligations payable thereon.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated minimum useful lives of the assets
regulated by Directorate General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics, Executive Yuan, R.O.C. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated based on the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful lives are 2-25 years for the major fixed assets, except for buildings which is 30 years. Gain or loss on disposal of
fixed assets is recognized as non-operating income or loss.

Intangible assets

The cost of computer software is capitalized and amortized under the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

Revenue, cost and expense recognition

Fare revenues are recognized when service has been provided. Advertising revenues from stations and carriages are
recognized in accordance with the terms of the contracts. Rental revenues from MRT station shops, underground
shopping malls, and base for mobile phone facilities are accounted for in accordance with the terms of the leases.
Costs and expenses are recognized as incurred. In accordance with the financial statements examined by the
Taipei Municipality Audit Division, revenues and costs related to the Maokong Gondola and the Taipei Arena
commissioned by the Taipei City Government are expressed at gross amount.
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12) Provision for pension and severance liabilities

Under the defined benefit pension plan, net periodic pension costs are recognized in accordance with the actuarial
calculations. Net periodic pension costs include service cost, interest cost, expected return on plan assets, and
amortization of unrecognized net transition obligation and gains or losses on plan assets. Unrecognized net
transition obligation is amortized on a straight-line basis over 22 years. Under the defined contribution pension
plan, net periodic pension costs are recognized as incurred.

13) Income tax

14)

15)

16)

(1) The Company adopted R.O.C. SFAS No. 22, “Accounting for Income Tax” , whereby deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recorded under the asset and liability method with respect to temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward and income tax credits. A valuation allowance is then provided for deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will not be realized. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are divided into current or non-current according to the classification of the related liability or asset
or based on the expected length of time before it is recovered. When a change in the tax laws is enacted, the
deferred tax liability or asset is recomputed accordingly in the period of change. The difference between the new
amount and the original amount, that is, the effect of changes in the deferred tax liability or asset, is recognized as
an adjustment to current income tax expense (benefit) .

N
N>

In accordance with R.0.C. SFAS No. 12, “Accounting for Investment Tax Credits” , investment tax credits resulting
from the expenditures for acquisition of machinery or technology, research and development, and employee
trainings are recognized as incurred.

(3) Over or under provision of prior year's income tax liabilities is included in current year's income tax expense.

(4) An additional 10% corporate income tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings from January 1, 1998.
The income tax expense is recognized after the closing of the annual stockholders' meeting.

(5) The Company adopted the “Income Basic Tax Act” . If the amount of basic tax is more than the amount of
regular income tax, the difference is recognized as additional income tax in the current year.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company recognizes impairment loss when there is indication that the recoverable amount of an asset is less
than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm's length transaction after
deducting any direct incremental disposal costs. The value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows
to be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

When the impairment no longer exists, the impairment loss recognized in prior years shall be recovered.

Employees' bonuses and directors' and supervisors' remuneration

The Company adopted EITF 96-052 of the Accounting Research and Development Foundation, R.O.C., dated March
16,2007, “Accounting for Employees' Bonuses and Directors' and Supervisors' Remuneration” , whereby the costs
of employees' bonuses and directors' and supervisors' remuneration are accounted for as expenses and liabilities,
provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive obligation and the amounts can be estimated
reasonably. However, if the accrued amounts for employees' bonuses and directors' and supervisors' remuneration
are significantly different from the actual distributed amounts resolved by the stockholders at their annual
stockholders' meeting subsequently, the differences shall be recognized as gain or loss in the following year.
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3. EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the amendments to R.O.C. SFAS No. 10, “Accounting for
Inventories” . The adoption of SFAS No. 10 had no effect on the financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

4. CASH
Petty cash, checking accounts and demand deposits 326,512 $ 182,391

5. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS-CURRENT

Beneficiary certificates $ 2,541,872 $ 3,430,357
Listed stocks 18,948 27,185
2,560,820 3,457,542

Unrealized gain or loss on financial assets 34,803 17,669
$ 2,595,623 $ 3,475,211

As of December 31, 2010, the unrealized gain on financial assets of $34,507 is comprised of the Company's unrealized
gain on available-for-sale financial assets of $34,803 and proportional adjustments for investee companies' unrealized
loss on available-for-sale financial assets of $296.

6. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

Current:

Corporate bonds $ 433,897 S 99,910
Financial bonds 300,000 200,000
733,897 299,910

Non-current:
Corporate bonds 689,939 1,256,257
Financial bonds 280,000 580,000
969,939 1,836,257
$ 1,703,836 $ 2,136,167

7. INVENTORIES-NET

Materials and fuel $ 1,913,495 $ 1,956,947
Merchandise 3,605 3,459
1,917,100 1,960,406

Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence ( 3,899) ( 9,042)
$ 1,913,201 $ 1,951,364

Expense and loss incurred on inventories for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

Transportation costs $ 9,092,401 $ 8,420,686
Other operating costs 762,798 581,429
Gain from price recovery ( 5,143) ( 34,792)
(Loss) gain from price recovery of use recorded as ( 3,884) 1

operating expenses and non-operating expenses

S 9,846,172 $ 8,967,324
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8. LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR THE EQUITY METHOD

_ December 31,2010 December 31,2009

EasyCard Investment Holding Co., Ltd. $ 357,908 27.49% $ 168,267 28.00%

Metro Taipei Consulting Service Ltd. o o

(MTCS) 10,349 20.00% 10,490 20.00%
$ 368,257 $ 178,757

1. EasyCard Corporation had transferred the common stock to EasyCard Investment Holding Co., Ltd. on December 1,
2009. The common stock exchange rate was 1:1.

2. EasyCard Investment Holding Co., Ltd., an investee of the Company accounted for under the equity method, made
capital increase in September, 2010 from issuance of new common stock. The Company subscribed for 5,040,000
shares at 25 dollars per share, so that the Company's ownership rate is decreased from 28.00% to 27.49%.

3. The investment income recognized based on the financial statements audited by other auditors for the years ended
December 31,2010 and 2009 was $60,635 and $43,161, respectively.

9. FIXED ASSETS-NET

1) Fixed assets

Buildings and improvements $ 36,484 (s 9,499) $ 26,985
Machinery and equipment 1,228,692 ( 728,169) 500,523
Transportation equipment 4,360,082 ( 827.894) 3532188
Miscellaneous equipment 228,086 ( 119,432) 108,654
Leasehold improvements 2,144,577 ( 1,134,987) 1,009,590
) -

$ 10,182,834 ($ 2,819,981) $ 7,362,853

Buildings and improvements $ 36,484 (S 8322) $ 28,162
Machinery and equipment 1,232,339 ( 814,487) 417,852
Transportation equipment 4,339,090 ( 639,484) 3,699,606
Miscellaneous equipment 192,716  ( 108,105) 84,611
Leasehold improvements 2,018,450 ( 987,935) 1,030,515
rapayments fofbusiess failties 379,149 ' 379,149

$ 8198228 ($ 2,558333) $ 5,639,895

2)In 2010 and 2009, the leasehold improvements pertain to MRT stations and the related construction of Taipei
Metropolitan Rapid Transit Systems (TMRTS) leased from the Taipei City Government.

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

_ December 31,2010 December 31,2009

Computer software cost S 20,583 S 41,000
Deferred pension cost 119,569 179,401
$ 140,152 $ 220,401

The Company purchased computer software for the ERP system in 2005. The cost is amortized under a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives.
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11. MISCELLANEOUS ASSETS

Call receivables-net - $ =
Deposits 946 1,087
Others 891 682

$ 1,837 $ 1,769

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, call receivables amounted to $32,609 and 30,042, respectively, which were fully
provided with allowance.

12. DEFERRED ASSETS

_ December 31,2010 December 31,2009
Deferred income tax assets 6,009 $ 7,607

13. ACCRUED EXPENSES

_ December 31,2010 December 31,2009
Accrued salary and bonus 861,222 769,407
Accrued rental expense 46,221 39,670
Accrued double-way fare discount for
transferring passenger between Metro 98,078 93,181
and bus
Accrued utilities expenses 112,313 99,993
Other accrued expenses 534,996 332,648

$ 1,652,830 $ 1,334,899
14. RETIREMENT PLAN

1) The Company has a non-contributory and funded defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Labor
Standards Law, covering all regular employees. Under the defined benefit plan, two units are accrued for each year
of service for the first 15 years and one unit for each additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units.
Pension benefits are based on the number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last
6 months prior to retirement. The Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 10.5% and 12.3% in 2010 and
2009, respectively of the employees' monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bank of
Taiwan, the trustee.

2) The related actuarial assumptions used to calculate the net periodic pension cost and pension obligation on the
measurement dates as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

- § December31,2010 December 31, 2009

Discount rate 2% 2.25%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2% 2.25%
Future salary increase rate 1.5% 1.60%
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3) Pension-related assets and obligations are as follows:

- § December31,2010 December 31,2009

Benefit obligations:

Vested benefit obligation ($ 180,227) (s 149,651)
Non-vested benefit obligation ( 1,860,473) ( 1,753,617)
Accumulated benefit obligation ( 2,040,700) ( 1,903,268)
Additional benefits based on future salaries ( 737,413) ( 642,572)
Projected benefit obligation ( 2,778,113) ( 2,545,840)
Plan assets at fair value 1,916,538 1,717,588
Funded status ( 861,575) ( 828,252)
Unrecognized net transition obligation 203,615 213,796
Unrecognized loss on plan assets 644,271 598,728
Unrecognized prior service cost 8,685 9,168
Additional liability ( 119,569) ( 179,401)
Reserve for pension ($ 124,573) ($ 185,961)
Vested benefit (s 198,096 ) (s 172,765)

4) Net periodic pension costs for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

| For the years ended December 31,

Service cost $ 138,238 $ 142,393
Interest cost 57,281 64,146
Expected return on plan assets ( 38,645) ( 22,244)
Amortization of unrecognized net transition obligation 10,181 10,181
Amortization of prior service cost 483 483
Amortization of loss on plan assets 17,221 17,851
Net pension cost $ 184,759 $ 212,810

5) Effective July 1, 2005, the Company established a defined contribution pension plan (the “New Plan”) under the
Labor Pension Act. Participants under the old plan have the option to be covered under the New Plan. Under the New
Plan, the Company contributes monthly an amount based on 6% of the employees' monthly salaries and wages to
the employees' individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are portable upon
termination of employment. The net pension cost recognized under the defined contribution plan for the years ended
December 31,2010 and 2009 amounted to $64,742 and $44,805, respectively.

15. RETAINED EARNINGS

Under the Company's Articles of Incorporation, the current year's earnings after paying all taxes, offsetting prior
years' operating losses and setting aside 10% as legal reserve, if any, shall be allocated based on the proposal of the
board of directors and approved by the Company's shareholders.

Pursuant to the ROC Company Law, the legal reserve must be used exclusively to offset losses and can not be used
for any other purpose, except that one-half of the legal reserve may be capitalized based on a resolution at the
stockholders' meeting when the legal reserve equals at least 50% of paid-in capital.

As approved at the stockholders' meeting held in 2010 and 2009, the Company distributed $0.14 and $0.294 cash
dividends per share, respectively.

The Taiwan imputation tax system requires that any undistributed current earnings, of a company derived on or
after January 1, 1998 be subject to an additional 10% corporate income tax if the earnings are not distributed in
the following year. This 10% additional tax on undistributed earnings paid by the Company may be used as tax
credit by the foreign stockholders against the withholding tax on dividends. In addition, the individual domestic
shareholders can claim a proportionate share in the Company's corporate income tax, including the 10% additional
tax, as tax credit against their individual income tax liability effective 1998.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company's undistributed earnings and imputation tax credit account
balance were as follows:

- December 31,2010 December 31, 2009

Undistributed earnings

-had been assessed with a 10% incometax $ 1,004,994 S 873,120
-had not been assessed with a 10% incometax 405,731 292,035
$ 1,410,725 $ 1,165,155

Imputation tax credit $ 170,694 $ 155,578
12.10% 16.99%

Creditable tax ratio (Estimated) (Actual)
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The actual creditable tax ratio should be calculated based on the imputation tax credit account balance on
dividend distribution date. As a result, the tax credit stockholders can claim when they received the 2009 earnings
distribution should be recorded according to the Income Tax Law until the dividend distribution date.

16. INCOME TAX

Income tax expense and income tax (refundable) payable are as follows:

Income before income tax at statutory tax rate $ 69,246 $ 87,180
Tax effect of permanent differences ( 12,258) ( 20,425)
Tax effect of enacted change in tax laws 1,141 1,901
Tax effect of investment tax credits ( 69,718) ( 39,744)
Income tax on separately taxed income - 363
;g‘r’/;;:;:me tax on prior year's undistributed 13187 27448
Income tax expense 1,598 56,723
Net changes of deferred income tax assets ( 1,598) ( 13,473)
Prepaid and withholding of income tax ( 5,338) ( 6,965)
Income tax on separately taxed income - ( 363)
Income tax (refundable) payable ($ 5,338) $ 35,922

Deferred tax assets are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets-non-current 6,009 $ 7,607

The details of temporary differences resulting in deferred income tax assets are as follows:

_ December 31,2010 December 31,2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 31,226 $ 5,308 $ 28,930 S 5,786

Provision for inventory 3,899 663 9,042 1,808

obsolescence

Others 221 38 65 13
S 35,346 S 6,009 S 38,037 7,607

The Company's income tax returns through 2006 have been approved by the Tax Authority.
17. PERSONNEL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Personnel expenses

Salaries $ 2,745,923 $ 603,283 $ 3,349,206
Labor and health insurances 207,731 42,987 250,718
Pension and retirement 202,923 48,193 251,116
Others 122,199 51,585 173,784
Depreciation 426,815 59,852 486,667
Amortization 7 27,551 27,558
s 3,705,598 $ 833,451 $ 4,539,049
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Personnel expenses

Salaries $ 2,424,475 $ 584,724 $ 3,009,199
Labor and health insurances 172,881 39,179 212,060
Pension and retirement 206,563 52,527 259,090
Others 108,090 47,725 155,815
Depreciation 421,742 64,352 486,094
Amortization 7 40,040 40,047

$ 3,333,758 $ 828,547 $ 4,162,305

18.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1) Names and relationship of major related parties

Name of Related Parties Relationship

Taipei City Government (TCG) Majority stockholder

New Taipei City Government (TPC) Investor of the Company for 8.75%

EasyCard Investment Holding Co., Ltd. Investee accounted for under the equity method
EasyCard Corporation Investee of the EasyCard Investment Holding Co., Ltd.
Metro Taipei Consulting Service Ltd. (MTCS) Investee accounted for under the equity method
Metropolitan Transport Corporation (MTC) Investee of TCG

2) Summary of significant transactions and balances with related parties

A. Property lease

The Company entered into an agreement with the Taipei City Government (TCG) to lease properties of the Taipei
Metropolitan Rapid Transit Systems (TMRTS) in October 2001. The lease term is from March 2001 to December
31, 2010. Rental is charged based on the replacement fee plus 4% of operating revenue, which is deposited into
the replacement account. Replacement fee is contributed according to the replacement plan that was authorized
by the Replacement Fund Management Commission. For 2010 and 2009, replacement fee was $2,200,000 and
$2,115,000, respectively. In 2010 and 2009, the rental expense was $2,665,806 and $2,458,292, respectively,
which were recorded as “Transportation cost” and “Other operating costs” . As of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
the rental expense payable was $46,221 and $39,670, which were paid in January 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Besides, the Company signed a Taipei metro system property lease memorandum with TCG on January 1, 2011,
which is valid for six months after the signing date. The two parties have to sign a formal lease contract before the
expiry of the memorandum.

B. Taipei IC Card Integration Business Agreement (the Agreement)
In compliance with the Taipei IC Card Integration Project of the Taipei City Government, the Company
signed a contract with EasyCard Corp. for the manufacture and issuance of tickets, data processing, and cash
disbursements. The major transactions under the Agreement are as follows:

(1) Other operating revenue:

Commissions from sales of

53,468 = 48,768 -
EasyCards 3 >
Ren'fal reyenue for.lease of site 2,081 i 1.904 i
for ticketing machine

$ 55,549 = $ 50,672 -

(2) Operating expense:

Operating outlay:
Handling charges for EasyCards $ 152,646 10.67 $ 150,872 12.08
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(3) Unearned revenue:

In accordance with the Agreement, EasyCard Corp. deposits a certain percentage of advance receipts of EasyCards
with the Company. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the advance receipts were $280,681 and $253,140,
respectively, listed under the unearned revenue account. In November 2007, the Company has extended the
Agreement with EasyCard Corp. to March 2011, and EasyCard Corp. paid royalty fee for EasyCards amounting to
$179,080 (including business tax) to the Company. As of December 31, 2009, the advance receipts for royalty
was $55,314, listed under the unearned revenue account. In 2010 and 2009, the royalty revenue was $55,314 and
$55,314, respectively, which was recorded as “Other non-operating income” .

(4) The balances resulting from the above transactions are as follows:

_ December 31,2010 December 31,2009

Accounts receivable $ 34,403 3253 $ 20,863 25,72
Other accounts receivable $ 12,256 558 § 16,465 10.92
Accrued expenses $ 25,547 1.55 3§ 14,136 1.06
Unearned revenue $ 281,171 80,81 $ 308,454 80.50

The payment terms for related parties are as follows: Payments for purchases of EasyCards (recorded as “Other
payables”) net of commissions are due 10 days after purchase. The handling charges for EasyCards and rental
revenue are due in the following month.

The Company incurred promotion expenses (charged to “Selling expenses”) to MTC for fare discount to
passengers using MRT and public buses in the amount of $86,158 and $80,966 in 2010 and 2009, respectively.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the unpaid fair discount expenses (recorded as “Accrued expenses”) were
$15,985 and $14,765, respectively.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company was engaged to handle certain business activities for the
Department of Transportation, TCG, Department of Social Welfare, TCG, Department of Finance, TCG, Department
of Rapid Transit Systems, TCG and Department of Social Welfare, TPC. The related account balances (subsidies for
tickets for senior, charity and escort and reimbursement for purchases of equipment, etc.) are as follows:

Receivables for senior, charity and escort tickets $ 54,658 $ 32,257
Advance receipts for construction of facilities $ 576,469 $ 305,232
Other receivables for construction of facilities $ 161,899 $ 94,353
Temporary credit (recorded as “Other payables”) $ 8,630 $ 1,964

In order to promote the quality of recreation in Maokong, improve the traffic control, and maintain the service
quality of the Maokong Gondola, Taipei City Government (TCG) entered into a management contract with the
Company and appointed the Company to operate the Maokong Gondola in accordance with the Taipei Gondola
Transport Business Policing Method and related regulations in December 2006. The operation of the Maokong
Gondola started on July 4, 2007.

In accordance with the contract, the Company should provide TCG with the financial statements for Maokong
Gondola operations within six months after the end of a fiscal year. Of the current year's earnings, if any, 20% of
the remaining amount shall be set aside as the Company's performance bonus for management efficiency. The
remaining amount shall be returned to TCG. Losses, if any, shall be reimbursed to the Company by the TCG. The
Maokong Gondola had been suspended from noon of October 1, 2008 due to the scouring out of hillside during
the Typhoon Sinlaku and Jangmi. During the suspension, TCG moved the base of “T16” pillar and renovated the
slope construction behind the lane 75, Wanshou Road. TCG appointed the Chinese Union of Professional Civil
Engineer Associations to complete the overall inspection and confirmed the safety for re-operation. Further, they
had completed the inspection for re-operation on March 4, 2010 and the Maokong Gondola started operating
again on March 30, 2010. In 2010 and 2009, the operating results of Maokong Gondola are as follows:
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Operating revenues (Note) $ 88,373 $ 114
Operating costs ( 187,004) ( 67,765)
Gross loss ($ 98,631) (s 67,651)

Note: The 2009 amount represents compensation revenue.

F. Taipei Arena Mandatory Management Contract

TCG entered into a management contract with the Company and appointed the Company to operate the Taipei

Arena on September 1, 2008.

In accordance with the contract, the Company should provide TCG with the financial statements for Taipei Arena
operations within six months after the end of a fiscal year. Of the current year's earnings, 20% of the remaining
amount shall be set aside as the Company's performance bonus for management efficiency. The remaining
amount shall be returned to TCG. Losses, if any, shall be reimbursed to the Company by the TCG. In 2010 and

20009, the operating results of Taipei Arena are as follows:

Operating revenues S 338,884 $ 283,285

Operating costs ( 291,958) ( 248,149)

Gross profit S 46,926 $ 35,136
19. COMMITMENTS

1) As of December 31, 2010, the unused balance of the Company's letters of credit for the purchase of materials and

fixed assets was $3,550.

2) For operating lease agreements, please refer to Note 18.2) .A.
20. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

1) Fair value of the financial instruments

- ] December 31,2010

Non-derivative financial instruments

Assets
Financial assets with fair values equal to book values $ 652,039
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,595,623
Held-to-maturity financial assets 1,703,836
Liabilities
Financial liabilities with fair values equal to book values 2,453,026

= $ 652,039
2,595,623 =
= 1,703,836

= 2,453,026

Non-derivative financial instruments

Assets
Financial assets with fair values equal to book values $ 414,330
Available-for-sale financial assets 3,475,211
Held-to-maturity financial assets 2,136,167
Liabilities
Financial liabilities with fair values equal to book values 1,919,153

= $ 414,330
3,475,211 =
= 2,136,167

= 1,919,153

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of the above financial instruments are summarized below:
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2) Procedure of financial risk control and hedge

The Company adopts overall risk management and control system to identify and measure a variety of financial risks
(including market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk) . The Company's management can
control and measure these risks effectively.

To control the risk management objectives of a variety of market risks effectively, the Company's management
considers the economic environment, competition and market value risk to achieve the best position of investment
risk, maintain investment of excess liquidity and control of overall market risk.

To meet its risk management objectives, the Company adopts the following strategy to control financial risk:

Credit risk

The Company has a stringent credit policy in place. Transactions are conducted only with counterparties with good
credit conditions. Appropriate measures are also undertaken where necessary to protect the Company's credit rights
and thereby mitigate credit risk.

3) Information of material financial risk

(1) Foreign exchange risk

Major revenues and costs of the Company are denominated in New Taiwan dollars, thus there is no foreign
exchange risk.

(2) Interest risk

The Company invests in fixed interest rate bonds. The objective is to earn the interest revenue when the
rate changes. Therefore, there is no cash flow risk in the holding period, but there is a fair value risk. The
Company's held-to-maturity financial assets as of December 31,2010 amounted $1,703,836.

(3) Price risk

The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Company and
classified on the balance sheet either as available-for-sale or at fair value through profit or loss. The Company
sets limits to control the transaction volume and stop-loss amount of derivatives to reduce its market risk.

(1) The Company has lower significant concentrations of credit risk, due to investment in government bonds. The
maximum loss to the Company is the total book value.

(2) The Company has lower significant concentrations of credit risk due to investment in company and financial
bonds, whose credit ratings are good. The maximum loss to the Company is the total amount of all book
value.

(3) The Company has lower significant concentrations of credit risk. Transactions are conducted only with
counterparties with good credit conditions. The maximum loss to the Company is the book value of
receivables.

The Company invests in available-for-sale financial assets which are traded in active markets and can be readily
converted into certain amount of cash approximate to their fair values. The liquidity risk exposure is low. The
Company's long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method are not traded in active markets.
The liquidity exposure is high, but the amount is not material to the financial statements.

As the Company has no interest-bearing transactions, there are no concentrations of interest-bearing cash flow
risk.
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2. ARLTRRA

(1) BFESEFEFELANRIE [FFER ) B [mEENAS ) $32,361 °

6,364,214 ($ 61) $ 6,364,153
2,015,014 2,015,014
5,639,895 5,639,895
220,401 220,401
9,094 282 9,376
14,248,618 $ 221 $ 14,248,839
2,336,192 $ 2,043 $ 2,338,235 3
185,961 185,961
390,603 ( 44) 390,559
2,912,756 1,999 2,914,755
11,335,862 ( 1,778) 11,334,084 2R3
14,248,618 $ 221 $ 14,248,839

11,185,465 $ $ 11,185,465
8,999,550) 32,226 ( 8967,324) 1
2,185,915 32,226 2,218,141
2,214,617) ( 32,409) ( 2,247,026) 1
28,702) ( 183) ( 28,885)
391,722 923 392,645
13,905) ( 1,097) ( 15,002) 2
349,115 (357 348,758
55,302) ( 1,421) ( 56,723) 3
293,813 ($ 1,778) $ 292,035

(2) EFTEHENTTLIRIIRIRIER - 185 [EMEENER] $1,097 WAREHED MBERIK - EWFIE]
(3) K EmFBEREMESIHINRESEIHEERELR - GsTRDRAIPA $357 » BHRLHREE
TFTEMER) R TEURER] $1.421°



4) Financial statement presentation

The accounts for the year ended December 31, 2009 were examined by TMAD of the Ministry of Audit on August 3,
2010. Certain accounts in the 2009 financial statements were restated to conform with the adjustments made by
TMAD.

. Balance per
Balance per audited : 2nce
_ ﬁnancial';tatements AL exan)rmatlon by

Balance Sheets

Assets

Current assets $ 6,364,214 (s 61) $ 6,364,153

Fund, investments and long-term receivables 2,015,014 - 2,015,014

Fixed assets 5,639,895 = 5,639,895

Intangible assets 220,401 - 220,401

Other assets 9,094 282 9,376

Total assets $ 14,248,618 $ 221 $ 14,248,839
Liabilities

Current liabilities $ 2,336,192 $ 2,043 $ 2,338,235 C

Long-term liabilities 185,961 - 185,961

Other liabilities 390,603 ( 44) 390,559

Total liabilities 2,912,756 1,999 2,914,755
Stockholders' equity 11,335,862 ( 1,778) 11,334,084 b&c

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity S 14,248,618 $ 221 $ 14,248,839

Balance per

N Adjustments examination by

financial statements TMAD

Statements of Income

Operating revenue $ 11,185,465 $ = $ 11,185,465
Operating cost (_ 8999,550) 32,226 ( 8967,324) a
Gross profit 2,185,915 32,226 2,218,141
Operating expenses ( 2,214,617) ( 32,409) ( 2,247,026) a
Operating income ( 28,702) ( 183) ( 28,885)
Non-operating income 391,722 923 329,645
Non-operating expenses ( 13,905) ( 1,097) ( 15,002) b
Income before income tax 349,115 ( 357) 348,723

Income tax expense ( 55,302) ( 1,421) ( 56,723) c
Net income $ 293,813 (s 1,778) $ 292,035

Note: For adjustments below $1,000, no explanation was provided.

Note a: TMAD reclassified gain from price recovery of inventory of $32,361 from “Cost of sales” to “Transportation & warehousing cost” .

Note b: TMAD recognized bad debt provision of $1,097 for accounts receivable by debiting “other non-operating expenses” and crediting
“allowance for doubtful accounts - overdue receivables” .

Note c: As a result of the adjustments listed above and other adjustments made by TCG and TMAD, income before income tax, income tax
payable, and income tax expense decreased by $357, $1,421, and $1,421, respectively.
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LIEISERE A E R Significant Statistical Data

IR#FRE Route Length

2B R E Total length of MRT network
=22E% Elevated Section
FEE% Ground Level Section
HIRE? Underground Section
Ti2RRE Total Length of Project

EBS2! Number of Stations

M5E & Medium Capacity =)5&E & High Capacity
25.2 75.6
21.1 1.5
- 9.2
4.1 54.9

/E\%Z\%}E Entire System
100.8
32.6
9.2
59.0
105.4

BBH7] unn
NE Km
ANE Km
NE Km
ANE Km
NE Km

fEESIL 2] Total Number of Stations
522E% Elevated Section
FEE Ground Level Section
HITNEZ Underground Section
E[ER Trains

EFIE% Medium Capacity EE% High Capacity

24 69
22 10
- 7

2 52

EFIE% Medium Capacity %E% High Capacity

éﬁ;é,%ﬁ Entire System

@%,ﬁﬂﬁ Entire System

ES{7 unit
iifi Station
Uiy Station
{if Station
iy Station
ES{\] unit

%I|EBf&E4E Train Model

FIEEE] Number of Trains

=5\ E3E FFZ Number of Carriages per Train
ES[fEZ Number of Carriages

Y ESFE(T1] Seats per Train
T93||ESH)ZX B E Passenger Capacity per Train
ERANEH Maximum Gradient

=/ \HZREAE Minimum Curvature Radius
TIRPE Average Speed

R 5T RHE Maximum Designed Speed

vaLass RO Fdel  odel | Model
255 505 2 36 6

4 4 6 6 6

102 202 132 216 36

80 76 352 352 352

456 424 2200 2200 2,200

6% 6% 3% 3% 3%

30 30 200 200 200

31 33 34 34 34

80 80 90 90 90

EF‘E% Medium Capacity %E% High Capacity

3718
Model

44.5

6(3)°
267
308
2,222
3%
200
34
90

= ZAHFT Entire System

HIEE Train
ES[ff Carriage
ES[ff Carriage

A Person

A Person

AR 'm
RE/1)\EF Km/Hr
RE/I)\BF Km/Hr

ES{\] unit

1R Depots
HE4REREL Number of Depots
HERRETE Total Area

13.31 127.97

141.28

JEE Depot

/AE Hectares

MiEEES2E Affiliated Enterprises
BRE[E Station Shop Spaces
&5 Advertising
BHiSES
ES[fBFEES On-Board Advertisements
{EE8335 Parking Lots
H4ESES{] Motorcycle Spaces
YRESES(T] Automobile Spaces
#ME Underground Malls
[EEHZ ] Number of Shop Spaces

[5#HETS Total Shop Space Area
51 1. S2ILETL « BEERL

5% 2:2006 I 7 B 22 B#E » Bl 371 BY 3 E5HHERIE
Note 1:

Station Advertisements

Station.

Epl%% Medium Capacity %E% High Capacity

21 106
167 832
1,818 9,078
989 7,326
1,517 2,284
- 116

- 8,729

TREFTEUL ~ ET EPRERIN 4 8 2iE5Ri; -

BT 3 FUESHATILEAN )\ EBESTHR THREE -

@;{%ﬁ:ﬁ Entire System
127

999
10,896

8,315
3,801

116
8,729

%1ﬂ Unit
K Store

& Piece

I8 Piece

% Unit
% Unit

X Store
FHAR m?

Includes the four main transfer stations: Taipei Main Station, Zhongxiao Fuxing Station, Zhongxiao Xinsheng Station, and Minguan W. Rd.

Note 2: On 22 July 2006, three sets of 371 model Electrical Multiple Units consisting of three cars each began operations on the Xinbeitou and

Xiaobitan Branch Lines.



SEEE Operating Statistics @o10.01.01-2010.12.31)

E5E %R Operating Duration

e
EFIEE Medium Capacity

i—3

%EE High Capacity

BS{Y7 unit

FHEER
Daily Operating Duration

SI|EE5E SRS Train Time Statistics

18 (6:00~24:00)

q]E% Medium Capacity

18 (6:00~24:00)

EE% High Capacity

1)\

[=sEEis =]t E5 1A Taipei Main Station 40-507) 40-50 sec
Fions NN 25~60F) sec  BE{EMHEIL Zhongxiao Fuxing 40-50%) 40-50 sec
P HERZf Other Stations 18-35%) 18-35 sec
KIN-FIE Danshui - Xindian 55322F) 55 min 22 sec
1t#%-F528 A Beitou - Nanshijiao 357942F) 35 min 42 sec
o , EA7#E-7XZ Nangang - Yongnig 407319%) 40 min 19 sec
Efr“jﬁ"%qi . . 457930 1) O TnERER R 33312F) 33 min 12 sec
ne-Way Trip Duration 45 min 30 sec Nangang - Far Eastern Hospital
BEN-BEFE 20348%) 20 min 48 sec
Luzhou -Zhongxiao Xinsheng
IX-FTE Danshui-Xindian 1107244%) 110min 44 sec
-FEED eitou — Nanshijiao 717324 71min 24 sec
Jt%-Ea22A Beitou - Nanshiji D241 in 2
= F9/8-72XEE Nangang - Yongnig 807238%) 80min 38 sec
Ro @E E?Q Durati 96 7 min ROy -Zn e BT 66024F)  66min 24 sec
ound frip Luration Nangang - Far Eastern Hospital
EN-B=34 41936F)  41min 36 sec
Luzhou -Zhongxiao Xinsheng
=TI 1330 ) ;
Turnaround Time 1 min 30 sec 210-4807) sec

iZE Ridership

E‘pﬁ% Medium Capacity

%E% High Capacity

/E\;(:\\ﬁﬁﬁ Entire System

oo

ES{17 unit

FERES

Annual Ridership

ATSES

Average Daily Ridership
FREEHTISES

Average Weekday Ridership
PIREEEHES

Average Weekend and Holiday Ridership

59,150,826
162,057
176,795

128,766

qﬂé% Medium Capacity

446,315,624
1,222,783
1,269,750

1,116,687

=SFE=

IEJEE High Capacity

505,466,450
1,384,840
1,446,545

1,245,453

/E\%ﬁ} Entire System

AR Trip
AR Trip
AR Trip
AZR Trip

ES{17 unit

ESER{EF Train Usage

SIS HRITREIIR

Total Number of Train Runs
HIEEER

Average Daily Runs
FEENE

Total Train Kilometers

RIFARFSIEE Service Performance

194,637
533

4,963,517

EPE% Medium Capacity

- 683,925
(ZEHR1T8L Main Line Transits 439,986)
\ 1,874
(E45178% Main Line Transits 1,205)

10,833,264

%EE High Capacity

878,562
2,407

15,796,781

/E\%’:Qﬁ‘\ﬁ Entire System

I Run
I Run
JEES/NE Train-Km

oo

ES{17 unit

THILUED &I R
Average Peak Headway
IR BT R
Average Off-Peak Headway
1JEER

Train Speed

HEREZ

On-Time Rate
KIEFHIFREE

Average Loading Rate During Peak Hours
— RS IER

Minor Incidents
BEAREMWE

Major Incidents
REARE

Total Passenger Kilometers
Hifth Other Statistics
HIEE (&)

Average Ticket Price (After-tax)

FIRRERE
Average Trip Length

2/3'55%)
2 min 55 sec
47333
4 min 33 sec

33.63

98.44%

461,371,712

4335%)
4 min 35 sec

57334

5 min 34 sec
33.98
99.74%

4.28

0.28

0.00

3,661,817,497

0.38

4,123,189,209
/_:E;é\ﬁ}}f Entire System

22.25

8.16

RE /)
Km/Hr

NFFFTRR
Person/m?
HEELNE
Incident/Million Km
HEaERE
Incident/Million Km
HEARE
Passenger-Km

oo

ES{17 unit

7T NTD

NE Km
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